
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Sandra Hobbs 

direct line 0300 300 5257 
date 31 July 2009 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
 

CHILDREN, FAMILIES & LEARNING OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
 

Date & Time 
Tuesday, 11 August 2009 10.00 a.m. 

 
Venue at 

Committee Room 1, The Council Offices, High Street 
North, Dunstable, Beds, LU6 1LF 

 
 

 
Jaki Salisbury 
Interim Chief Executive 

 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the CHILDREN, FAMILIES & LEARNING 
 OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs J Street (Chairman), Mrs D B Gurney (Vice-Chairman), P A Blaine, 
D Bowater, N B Costin, I Dalgarno, Dr R Egan, P Hollick, K Janes and 
A Shadbolt 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
Cllrs: Mrs A Barker, Mrs S Goodchild and Mrs M Mustoe] 

 
 Co-optees: Ms Chapman (Parent Governor), Ms Image (Roman Catholic  
  Diocese), Mr Landman (Parent Governor), Mr Reynolds (Church 
  of England Diocese) and Mr  Sear (Parent Governor) 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 
MEETING 



 

AGENDA 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

Apologies for absence and notification of substitute members. 
 

2. MINUTES 
  

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting held on 14 July 
2009. 
 

3. MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
  

 To receive from Members declarations and the nature in relation to:-  
 
(a) personal interests in any agenda item. 

 
(b) personal and prejudicial interests in any agenda item. 

 
(c) any political whip in relation to any agenda item. 

  
4. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

5. PETITIONS 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

6. QUESTIONS, STATEMENTS OR DEPUTATIONS 
  

To receive any questions, statements or deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

7. CALL-IN 
  

To consider any matter referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to 
call-in of a decision. 
 

8. REQUESTED ITEMS 
  

To consider any items referred to the Committee at the request of a Member 
under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution. 
 
 



 
REPORTS 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

9 PRIORITIES FOR THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG 
PEOPLE'S PLAN FOR CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE 
 
To advise Members of the work that has been done to 
develop a Children and Young People’s Plan for Central 
Bedfordshire and the priorities that have emerged 
following consultation with children, young people, 
families and partners. 
 

 11 - 46 

10 CONSULTATION ON THE FUTURE OF SPECIAL 
SCHOOLS IN THE EAST OF CENTRAL 
BEDFORDSHIRE 
 
To outline the options for the future of special schooling 
in the East of Central Bedfordshire in the light of the 
recommendations of the SEN Review, and the decision 
made by the Executive on 23 June 2009 to move 
forward to first stage consultation. 
 
 

  47 - 52 

11 NEXT STEPS ON TRANSFORMING TEACHING AND 
LEARNING IN CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE 
 
At the request of the Committee at the last meeting, 
Members are invited to comment on the ideas for the 
next stage of work and to note the letter that was sent by 
the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services to Bedford 
Borough Council. 
 

  53 - 62 

12 EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN 
 
To consider the Executive Forward Plan. 
 

 63 - 78 

13 DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME 2009-2010 
 
To provide Members with a draft work programme for 
approval following initial discussion at the last meeting. 
 

  79 - 86 

14 ACRONYMS USED IN REPORTS 
 

 87 - 88 

15 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting will be held on 8 September 2009. 
 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

At a meeting of the CHILDREN, FAMILIES & LEARNING OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held at Room 14, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford on 
Tuesday, 14 July 2009 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr J Street (Chairman) 

Cllr Mrs D B Gurney (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 
Councillors: P A Blaine 

D Bowater 
N B Costin 
 

Parental Co-optees: 
 

H Chapman 
D Landman 
 

Church of England Co-optee: J Reynolds 
Roman Catholic Co-optee: F Image 

 
Apologies for Absence: Cllrs I Dalgarno 

K Janes 
B Sear 
 

 
Substitutes: Cllr Mrs A Barker (In place of I Dalgarno) 

 
 

Members in Attendance: Cllrs P N Aldis 
M Gibson 
Mrs A M Lewis 
S F Male 
T Nicols 
Mrs C Turner   
 

 
Officers in Attendance: Mr B Carter – Overview & Scrutiny Manager 
 Mrs M Clampitt – Democratic Services Officer 
 Mrs S Gibson – Interim Assistant Director, Policy, 

Planning and Commissioning 
 Mrs E Grant – Deputy Chief Executive/ Director of 

Children, Families and Learning 
 Mr P Shevlin – Head of School Standards and 

Improvement 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 1



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 2  

 

 

 
CFL/09/1   Members' Interests  

 
(a) Personal Interests:- 

 
 The following Members declared that they were also School / College 

Governors at various educational facilities: 
 

 Cllr P A Blaine 
 Mrs Chapman  
 Cllr N B Costin 
 Cllr Dr R Egan 
 Cllr Mrs D B Gurney 
 Cllr P Hollick 
 Cllr Mrs A M Lewis 
 Cllr S F Male 
 Mr Reynolds 
 Cllr J Street 
 Cllr D Bowater  Assistant Portfolio Holder Adult Services 
  
(b) Personal and Prejudicial Interests:- 

 
 None. 

 
(c) Any Political Whip in relation to items on the agenda:- 

 
 None. 
 

 
CFL/09/2   Chairman's Announcements and Communications  

 
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the inaugural meeting of the Children, 
Families and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 
He referred to the Terms of Reference of the Committee and emphasised the 
importance of its policy development work in the context of supporting the 
Council’s strategic objective of raising the aspirations of our children and young 
people. 
 
A question was asked in relation to agenda item 11 Bedfordshire and Luton 
Partnership NHS Trust Tender Process – Next Steps and why it had been 
placed on the agenda.  It was noted that it was a cross cutting topic which 
related to both this Committee and the Social Care, Health & Housing 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.   
 
  

CFL/09/3   Petitions  
 
The Chairman announced that no petitions had been referred to this meeting. 
 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 2



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 3  

 

 

 
CFL/09/4   Questions, Statements or Deputations  

 
There were no applications from members of the public to speak under the 
Public Participation Procedure allowed for under Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

 
CFL/09/5   Call-In  

 
No matters were referred to the Committee for a decision in relation to call-in of 
a decision. 

 
 

CFL/09/6   Requested Items  
 
No items were referred to the Committee for consideration at the request of a 
Member under Procedure Rule 3.1 of Part D2 of the Constitution.  

 
 

CFL/09/7   Children, Families and Learning Policy Development  
 
The Committee received a presentation from the Deputy Chief Executive/ 
Director of Children’s, Families and Learning which provided an overview of the 
work being carried out by this directorate and the impact for all residents of 
Central Bedfordshire. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children’s, Families and Learning 
introduced the Assistant Directors and their areas of responsibility: 
 
The Children and Young People’s Plan was the responsibility of the Children’s 
Trust and the legal responsibility of the Director to ensure a Plan is endorsed 
by Council. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children’s, Families and Learning gave 
an overview of the Scrutiny role within the Children and Young People’s Plan 
as follows: 
 
“Lead Members may wish to encourage the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
to look closely at the priorities and associated work streams in the Children and 
Young People’s Plan.  This could provide extra leverage over partners in the 
Children’s Trust to drive better delivery.”   Statutory Guidance The Roles and 
Responsibilities for the Lead Member and Director of Children’s Services – 
Crown Copyright 2009 
 
The Cultural Strategy should be consultative, area specific, kept under constant 
review, linked to the sustainable community strategy and offer guidance on 
allocation of resources.  It should be what makes ‘life worth living’.  The 
Department of Culture, Media and Sport encourage authorities to have a 
strategy. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 3



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 4  

 

 

The top performance issues for children’s services were the following: 
 

• Governance and accountability of Children’s Trusts 
• The sharp focus on safeguarding 
• The need for the Children and Young People’s Plan to be endorsed as 

soon as possible 
• The impact of the performance framework on partners and the council – 

see national indicators and Local Authority Agreements 
• New legislation on Child Poverty, Apprenticeships and Skills, 21st 

Century Schools 
• Revised guidance for working together for Child Protection and word by 

work guidance for the Lead Member, DCS, Leader and Chief Executive 
to follow about their roles 

 
Issues for Cultural Services 
 

• Realistic outcomes for the Cultural Strategy to ensure it makes a 
difference in real terms of outcomes 

• Linking work with aspiration and the impact of recession on families 
• Co-working across all capital projects 
• Review of our services – constantly on-going 
• Partnerships with Parish and Town Councils 

 
In summation the Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children’s Families and 
Learning confirmed the following: 
 

• ‘Every Child Matters’ agenda is the best idea ever 
• Central Bedfordshire had the potential to go far in terms of cultural 

services 
 
The Committee then determined an initial work programme for the coming 
months:  
 
Children and Young 
People’s Plan 

To decide whether to receive the whole Plan at one 
meeting or over several meetings. 
 

Special Education 
Needs 

A report requested outlining the SEN provision in 
Central Bedfordshire. 
 

Next Steps in 
Transforming Teaching 
and Learning 

A presentation and complimentary report in 
advance of Executive consideration on 15 
September 2009. 
 

Performance report Q1 The quarterly performance report 
 

Safeguarding update To be presented quarterly together with the 
performance reports 
 

Commissioning Policy Consideration to be given to the establishment of a 
task force to review this policy. 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 4



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 5  

 

 

Performance report Q2 The quarterly performance report 
 

Safeguarding update To be presented quarterly together with the 
performance reports 
 

Children’s Workforce 
Development Strategy 

Consideration to be given to the establishment of a 
task force to review this strategy. 
 

Cultural Strategy Consideration to be given to the establishment of a 
task force to review this strategy. 
 

Performance report Q3 The quarterly performance report 
 

Safeguarding update To be presented quarterly together with the 
performance reports 
 

Home to School 
Transport Policy 

Consideration to be given to the establishment of a 
task force to review this policy. 
 

 
RESOLVED 
 
1. that the report of the Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children, 

Families and Learning be noted. 
 
2. that the work programme as detailed above, be noted. 
 
3. that the work programme be refined further at the next meeting. 
 

 
CFL/09/8   Building Schools for the Future and Transforming Teaching and Learning 

in Central Bedfordshire  
 
The Committee received and considered the report of the Assistant Director for 
Schools and Learning which set out the background to the Building Schools for 
the Future (BSF) programme and outlined the early stages of the work of the 
Learning Transformation Board.  It also outlined initial arrangements for 
gathering information and views from head teachers and chairs  of governors 
about improving the way we: organise school places; develop innovative 
curricula; manage transition and ensure that schools are at the centre of 
communities in Central Bedfordshire. 
 
The Committee were informed that the former Bedfordshire County Council 
(BCC) had put in a bid for BSF and had reached wave 2 of 6.  Bedford Borough 
and Kempston were on wave 6 of 6.  It was hoped that Central Bedfordshire 
Council (CBC) would place a bid but concerns were expressed about 
accessing the funding due to difficulties experienced by other authorities. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 5



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 6  

 

 

Bedford Borough Council (BBC) had provided their School Organisation 
Review public consultation document.  The Committee were asked to provide 
their views and what response should be given to BBC.  Concerns were 
expressed in relation to the impact on schools near the border between BBC 
and CBC. 
 
Members felt that the Portfolio Holder Children’s Services should send a 
response to the equivalent Portfolio Holder at BBC expressing the concerns of 
the Committee.  It was agreed that a copy of the letter would be forwarded to 
all members of the Committee for reference. 
 
It was agreed that reports would be brought to the next meeting of the 
Committee in relation to: 
 

1) Special Educational Needs 
2) Advance viewing of the 15 September Executive report on the 

development of the educational vision and progress towards entry into 
the National BSF. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
1. that a presentation / report in respect of the progress made since 
March 2009 in development of the educational vision for Central 
Bedfordshire and progressing towards entry into the National BSF  be 
provided to the August Children Families and Learning Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
2. that a report outlining Central Bedfordshire’s approach to Special 
Needs provision be submitted to the August Children’s Families and 
Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

CFL/09/9   Bedfordshire and Luton Mental Health & Social Care Partnership NHS 
Trust  
 
The Committee received and considered the report from the Assistant Director, 
Specialist Services, which summarised the process and next steps on the 
proposed ‘As Is’ transfer of Bedfordshire and Luton Partnership NHS Trust to 
another NHS organisation.   
 
In January 2009, the NHS East of England asked for NHS Trusts to prepare to 
become Foundation Trusts by December 2009.  Bedfordshire and Luton 
Partnership NHS Trust was not a large enough organisation to have achieved 
this target and instead proposed the transfer of their Trust to another 
Foundation Trust.  This would ensure the continuation of service provision for 
the population.  The NHS East of England approved this alternative and the 
tendering process was initiated. 
 
A brief overview/presentation from representatives of the Bedfordshire and 
Luton Partnership NHS Trust outlined the work completed todate.  It was noted 
that 22 applicants, all mental health trusts, had expressed an interest, this was 
shortlisted to 5 applicants and now 4 would be asked to tender.  The final 4 

Agenda Item 2
Page 6



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 7  

 

 

were: South Essex, Cambden and Islington, Hertfordshire and Cambrige.  The 
contract would be awarded by November 2009 and the new services would 
begin from April 2010. 
 
The Committee were informed that there had been strong collaboration 
between NHS Bedford, NHS Luton, CBC, BBC and LBC.  The essential part of 
the contract was to ensure that the health of the ‘child to adult’ process was 
considered.  The following were areas of importance: 
• Local and national imperatives are accounted 
• Improved integration of services 
• Improved transition 
• Review the social work roles 
• Commissioning on behalf of Children and Families 
• Speak to children/adults about their experiences of the service 
• Providing better services for local people 

 
Members asked if it was a novel tendering process and what experience within 
the health service was there for this process?  Members noted that it was not 
novel for foundation trusts to take over another trust.   
 
In response to another question, the Director of Health System Management 
confirmed that the main contract was for 3 years with a possible additional 2 
years however if the contract was not working well there was an 18 month 
cancellation clause.   
 
It was noted that this report/presentation was also being made to the Social 
Care, Health and Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee who would take the 
lead in monitoring progress in relation to the new management arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1. that the contents of the report of the Director of Children Families & 

Learning be noted and that the arrangements to ensure the they 
review progress in relation to new management arrangements for 
local mental health services later in the year, be agreed. 

 
2. that the Social Care, Health & Housing Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee be requested to monitor progress in relation to the new 
management arrangements and report back to this Committee any 
significant issues arising in relation to children’s mental health. 

 
 

CFL/09/10   Progress made towards establishing a Local Safeguarding Children Board 
for Central Bedfordshire  
 
The Committee received and considered the report of the Assistant Director, 
Specialist Services, which described the progress to date towards establishing 
a Local Safeguarding Children Board for Central Bedfordshire as agreed by the 
Shadow Executive on 14 April 2009.  Currently a shared agreement with 
Bedford Borough maintains the previous Board established by the former 
County Council.  Due to the strong working relationship which would be needed 

Agenda Item 2
Page 7



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 8  

 

 

with the Children’s Trust Board and the need for effective local arrangements, it 
was agreed at the meeting of the Shadow Executive held on 14 April 2009 (see 
Minute No. E/08/124) to establish a Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 
for Central Bedfordshire. 
 
It was agreed at the 14 April 2009 Executive that an Independent Shadow 
Chairman be appointed to work closely with the Chairman of the Bedfordshire 
Local Safeguarding Children Board and the Deputy Chief Executive/Director of 
Children, Families & Learning.  Maggie Blyth has bee appointed to the position. 
 
At the 9 June meeting of the Bedfordshire Local Safeguarding Children Board 
(LSCB) it was agreed to establish a task and finish group to oversee the 
establishment of the CBC LSCB.  The Group met on the 26 June and will meet 
again in July and early September to adopt the establishment plan.  The 
programme will be underpinned by the following four principles: 
 

(a) Effectiveness 
(b) Efficiency 
(c) Consensus 
(d) Resilience 

 
The Department for Children, Schools and Families would be consulted 
throughout the restructuring process.  A meeting was held on 2 July 2009 with 
the Deputy Director for Children Families and Learning and the Assistant 
Director for Vulnerable Children from Bedford Borough.  The meeting provided 
reassurance to the Department of Children, Schools and Families that all 
safeguards would be in place prior to the disaggregation of the service. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the initial work undertaken to establish a Local Safeguarding 
Children Board for Central Bedfordshire as detailed in the report of the 
Assistant Director Specialist Services be noted. 
 

 
CFL/09/11   Executive Forward Plan  

 
The Committee received and considered the Executive Forward Plan, which 
covered the period from 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010.  It was noted that from 
the Forward Plan to be published on 15 July 2009 specific Portfolio Holders for 
each item would be listed.  It was noted that they had been removed prior to 
the appointment of the new Executive at the annual Council meeting held on 18 
June 2009.  In addition, Members requested that Officers indicate under the 
consultation column which Overview and Scrutiny Committee it was felt should 
consider the item.  It was noted that some items would cross cut several 
directorates.  This information would be provided from the August Forward 
Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 8



CFL -  14.07.09 
Page 9  

 

 

 
RESOLVED 
 
that the Forward Plan, as attached to the agenda at item 12, be received.   
 

 
(Note: The meeting commenced at 9.30 a.m. and concluded at 12.30 

p.m.) 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
Page 10



 
 
Meeting: Children, Families and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 August 2009 

Subject: Priorities for the Children and Young People’s Plan for 
Central Bedfordshire 
 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children, Families and Learning  

Summary: The report sets out the work that has been done to develop a Children 
and Young People’s Plan for Central Bedfordshire and the priorities that 
have emerged following consultation with children, young people, 
families and our partners.   
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Sylvia Gibson, Interim Assistant Director, Policy, Planning and 

Commissioning  
 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. that members are asked to consider the work to develop a Children and 
Young People’s Plan for Central Bedfordshire 
 

2. that members give their views on the emerging priorities  
 

3. that members decide which areas of work in the Children and Young 
People’s Plan they would wish to scrutinise at future meetings. 

 
Background 
 
1. 
 

The Children Act 2004 Section 10 requires that all local authorities with a 
children’s services responsibility should make arrangements to promote 
cooperation between the authority and relevant partners with a view to 
improving the well-being of children and young people in the area. The Act 
establishes the Local Authority as the lead and accountable partner in such 
arrangements. 
 

2. 
 

The expectation is that these arrangements, commonly known as Children’s 
Trusts, should have been in place in all Local Authorities by the end of 2008 and 
that partners involved in the Trusts should work together to develop a Children 
and Young People’s Plan.  
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 11



3.  The Children and Young People’s Plan is the single, statutory, strategic 
overarching plan for all services which directly affect children and young people 
in the area. It needs to show how all relevant partners will integrate provision to 
improve well-being across all five Every Child Matters outcomes and focus on 
specific challenges and priorities.  
 

4. The Children and Young People’s Plan should: 
 

• drive better local integration of children’s services; 
 
• help strengthen local partnership arrangements; and 

 
• describe what improvements will be achieved in the local area, and when 
these improvements will be delivered. 

 
5. New legislation in the Autumn is expected to strengthen Children’s Trusts by: 

 
• extending the range of Children’s Trust partners to include maintained 
schools, Academies, sixth form and further education colleges and Job 
Centre Plus; 

 
• giving the Children’s Trust Board legal responsibility for preparing, 
publishing and monitoring the Children and Young People’s Plan; and 

 
• giving responsibility for implementing the Children and Young People’s 
Plan to the Children’s Trust Board Members, whose strategy for co-
operation it sets out. 

 
6. By 2010 all areas are expected to have consistent and high quality 

arrangements in place for prevention, early identification and early intervention 
in order to narrow the gaps and improve outcomes for all. It is expected that all 
areas will need to develop new Children and Young People’s Plans for 2011. 
 

Background to the Children’s Trust for Central Bedfordshire  
 
7. 
 

In November 2008 Central Bedfordshire Shadow Executive considered a report 
which set out proposals for establishing a Children’s Trust in Central 
Bedfordshire.  

 
8. 
 

At that meeting the following recommendations were agreed: 
 
• the establishment of a Children’s Trust in Central Bedfordshire following 

the proposed model outlined in the report of the Director of Children, 
Families and Learning now submitted, be agreed; 

 
• that the steps as outlined in the report, primarily the establishment of a 

Shadow Trust Board and Joint Commissioning Board to guide and enable 
the establishment of the Trust, be agreed; and 

 
• that the intentions to develop stronger representation for young people on 

the Trust, be noted. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 12



9. 
 

On 9 April the Central Bedfordshire Children and Young People's Trust Board 
had its first meeting and agreed the following working arrangements: 
 
• a Children’s Trust Board;  
 
• a Commissioning Executive; and 
 
• five Every Child Matters Delivery Groups – Be Healthy; Make a Positive 

Contribution; Enjoy and Achieve, Economic Wellbeing; Stay Safe. 
 
See Appendix A for Trust structure and Appendix B for current Trust 
membership. 
 

10. The Trust also endorsed the following Local Area Agreement indicators as key 
priorities for the Children and Young People Plan. The Trust will be accountable 
to the Local Strategic Partnership for these National Indicators (NIs) which will 
be monitored by the Government through Go East.  
 

11. • NI 51 Effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health services 
(CAMHs) - Be Healthy Delivery Group; 

 
• NI 56 Obesity among primary school age children in Year 6 - Be Healthy 

Delivery Group;  
 
• NI 110 Young people's participation in positive activities - Make a Positive 

Contribution Delivery Group;  
 
• NI 115 Substance misuse by young people - Be Healthy Delivery Group; 

and  
 
• NI 117 16 to 18 year olds who are not in education, employment or training 

(NEET) - Achieve Economic Well-being Delivery Group. 

12. As the Children and Young People’s Plan is key in setting out our strategic 
intentions for children, young people and families in Central Bedfordshire and 
provides the basis against which we will be inspected and assessed, the 
Trust agreed that we would develop a Children and Young People's Plan 
between May and August 2009. It was agreed that the plan would be in place for 
eighteen months so that the emerging guidance and legislation expected in 
2010 could inform the new plan that has to be published in 2011.   
 

Developing the Central Bedfordshire Children and Young People’s Plan 
 
13. During April, to start the process of developing the plan, we analysed our local 

evidence and looked at the findings from the first two stages of the consultation 
with children and young people to help us build up our local picture of needs and 
aspirations.   

Agenda Item 9
Page 13



14. During April and May the Every Child Matters Delivery Group leads held a series 
of workshops with partners to begin the work of developing the plan. As part of 
this process stakeholders reviewed the local evidence, consultation feedback, 
equalities issues relating to their particular Delivery Group and completed a self 
assessment in relation to workforce development issues.  
 

15. A number of priorities emerged through this process and they formed the basis 
for our consultation with children, young people, families and stakeholders 
during June and July.   
 

16. Throughout August the Delivery Groups are meeting to consider feedback and 
finalise the draft of the plan. The feedback they will be considering will be from 
the most recent consultation, from partner agencies and this Committee.  
 

17. 
 

In September the Trust Board will receive the final draft for discussion, sign off 
and adoption. Once this is agreed the Children and Young People’s Plan will be 
adopted by all partners through their decision making and governance structures 
and in October we plan to hold a Conference to launch the Trust and Plan. 
 

18. Consultation with children and young people has played a significant part in the 
development of the Children and Young People’s plan and has happened in 
three phases: 
 
• In January we consulted with a number of youth groups to help us identify the 
priorities we should consult on. For this part of the consultation we spoke to 
550 children and young people.  
 
• During February and March we took the results from phase one and produced 
a questionnaire that was then taken into lower, middle and upper schools. 
Using an interactive voting system the children and young people were asked 
to vote for their 1st and 2nd choice priorities. The second stage was fun and 
interactive, with the children, young people and teachers being able to see the 
results straight away. 1,050 children and young people were involved at this 
stage in the consultation.  

 
• The final phase happened in June and July alongside the online consultation 
for parents and stakeholders. A questionnaire was developed and made up of 
two sections: ‘What young people have told us’ and ‘What we are going to do’. 
The main aim of the consultation was to show that we had listened to children 
and young people and ask them whether they agreed with what we were 
planning to do. This final stage involved visiting lower, middle and upper 
schools and 2,670 children and young people took part. We also had 81 
responses to the online version of the questionnaire.   

 
• In total 4,351 children and young people have given us their views on what 
they would wish to see as priorities in our plan. We will be developing a 
children and young people’s summary version of the plan so that they can 
easily see what we plan to do and also to show that we have listened. 

 
• Further details on involving children and young people and this aspect of the 
consultation can be found in the plan and in Appendix D.  
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 14



 Scrutinising the emerging priorities 
 

19. As already noted, during the months of June and July stakeholders, children, 
young people and families were asked their views on the emerging priorities and 
the early headline results show strong agreement and support for our priorities.  
 

20. 79% of children and young people agreed that what we were planning to do 
matched what they had asked us to do. 
  

21. There was also agreement from the majority of stakeholders and the adults and 
parents that we had identified the right priorities for each of the Every Child 
Matters Outcomes.  
 

22. Across the five themes agreement varied from 64% (the lowest) who agreed 
with the ‘Enjoy and Achieve’ priorities to 76% (the highest) who agreed with the 
‘Being Healthy’ priorities.  The highest level of disagreement was with the 
priorities for ‘Achieving Economic Wellbeing’, but this was very low at 4%.  
 

23. A number of our emerging priorities for the Children and Young People’s Plan 
are cross cutting and underpin everything we do. To ensure we are developing a 
strong foundation for future working it is proposed that each of the following 
cross cutting priorities will have their own plans to ensure we make progress: 
 
• focusing on prevention, early identification and intervention; 
 
• reducing Child poverty by supporting children, young people and families who 
need assistance in improving their quality of life particularly with regard to 
housing, transport, parenting and early year’s intervention. 

 
• developing a locality based approach to delivering services with partners; 
 
• developing the Children’s Trust; 
 
• ensuring children and young people play an active part in influencing 
decisions that affect their lives and well-being; 

 
• developing an integrated workforce which is ambitious for all children and 
their families and expert in its practise; and 

 
• ensuring we address equalities and diversity issues. 
 

24. The following is the list of 20 emerging priorities for the five Every Child Matters 
Delivery Groups: 
 

 Be Healthy 
 

25. Priority 1:  Ensure a healthy start to life – including early access to antenatal 
care, reducing smoking and improving nutrition in pregnancy, promoting 
breastfeeding and increasing immunisation and vaccinations. 
 

 Priority 2:  Ensuring children and young people are able to make responsible 
decisions in relation to drugs, alcohol and sexual health. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 15



 Priority 3:  Promoting, protecting and treating the mental and emotional health 
of children and young people. 
 

 Priority 4:  Supporting children and young people to lead healthy lifestyles 
including reducing smoking and childhood obesity  and increasing physical 
activity and healthy eating.  
 

 Priority 5:  Transforming services for disabled children. 
 

 Stay Safe 
 

26. Priority 6:  To protect Children and young people from harm by providing a co-
ordinated and effective safeguarding process. 
 

 Priority 7:  Improving early identification of and intervention with vulnerable 
young people. 
 

 Priority 8:  Reducing the impact of domestic abuse on children and young 
people. 
 

 Priority 9:  Reducing the incidence and impact of bullying on children and 
young people. 
 

 Enjoy and Achieve 
 

27. Priority 10:  To transform teaching and learning and strengthen leadership to 
ensure that every school and early years’ setting is at least good. 
 

 Priority 11:  Raising achievement for all learners particularly underachieving 
groups and children in vulnerable circumstances. 
 

 Priority 12:  Improving engagement and enjoyment for all children and young 
people.  
 

 Making a positive contribution 
 

28. Priority 13:  Reduce anti-social behaviour and promote children and young 
people’s positive contribution to communities across Central Bedfordshire. 
 

 Priority 14:  Reducing youth offending 
  

 Priority 15:  Promoting and providing activities for all children and young people 
and their families, ensuring that the hard to reach and those with disabilities can 
take part in mainstream activities 
 

 Priority 16:  Strengthen and improve relationships within families by 
encouraging positive parenting 
 

 Economic Wellbeing  
 

29. Priority 18:  Develop a locality approach in reducing the number of young 
people Not in Employment Education or training, targeting those areas with the 
highest NEET levels. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 16



 Priority 19:  Work with employers, colleges and schools to increase the range 
and quality of local training, volunteering and job opportunities. 
 

 Priority 20: Inspire our most vulnerable young people to raise their aspirations 
and provide integrated support particularly to Care leavers, young offenders, 
young carers, young people with physical and learning disabilities, gypsy and 
traveller children and teenage parents. 
 

30. Members are asked to scrutinise these priorities and give their views on them. A 
first draft Children and Young People’s Plan has been attached at Appendix C 
so that members can see how the plan is developing around these priorities. 
Members will see that there is still work to be done to refine strategic actions 
and measures of success to ensure a high standard of consistency and rigour. 
However it was thought that Committee Members would find it beneficial to see 
this early draft in order to have a real opportunity to influence its development.  
 

 Scrutinising the Children and Young People’s Plan 
 

31. Over the next few months much work will be done to ensure the major elements 
of the Trust are working effectively. Delivery plans for the priorities will need to 
be developed and Delivery Group working arrangements will need to be 
established and embedded.  
  

32. It is proposed that Committee Members scrutinise the Children and Young 
People’s Plan by focusing on the work of one of the Every Child Matters 
Outcome Delivery Groups at a time. As the Children’s Trust has its first 
performance review meeting on 9 December, Members could begin reviewing 
progress by choosing to review one of the priority outcome areas at the 
Overview and Scrutiny meeting on 5 January.  
 

Conclusion and Next Steps  
 
33. The Trust Board is aiming to adopt the Children and Young People’s Plan for 

Central Bedfordshire at its next meeting on the 3 September. Central 
Bedfordshire Council will consider the plan at its Executive on 15 September. 
The plan and the Trust will then be formally launched on 16 October at a 
conference at Whipsnade Zoo which members will be welcome to attend. 
 

34. Key issues going forward are the development of the Trust in particular the Trust 
Board, the Commissioning Executive and the Delivery Groups. As a 
Commissioning Trust we will need a strong commissioning framework and 
governance arrangements.  New guidance in the Autumn will have implications 
for our arrangements and the development of our next Children and Young 
People’s Plan and this will have to be built into the development plan for the 
Trust.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 17



CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities:  
The Children and Young People’s Plan identifies a number of priorities in relation to 
‘Stay Safe’, ‘Enjoy and Achieve’ and ‘Be Healthy’.  The recommendations in this report 
provide Committee Members with an opportunity to scrutinise and influence the 
development of these priorities to ensure they support the delivery of the following 
Council Priorities:  
 
• Educating, protecting and providing opportunities for children and young people  
• Creating safer communities  
• Promoting healthier lifestyles. 
 
Financial:  

Working with partners to deliver services together in a more integrated way, with a 
focus on prevention and early intervention is a key driver of the plan and will in the 
longer term deliver efficiencies. 
 
Legal:  

The Children’s Trust and the Children and Young People’s Plan will enable the council 
and its partners to exercise the ‘duty to co-operate’ under section 10 of the Children 
Act 2004. 
 
Risk Management:  

Risk is a key part of delivery planning for the Children’s Plan and will be managed and 
mitigated through this process. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions):  

None. 
 
Equalities/Human Rights:  

During the development of the plan equalities issues and impacts were considered 
and included in the priorities are a number of strategic actions which identify children 
and young people who are not achieving, who are excluded or in vulnerable 
circumstances. 
 
Community Safety:  

Stay Safe is an Every Child Matters outcome and the plan will be delivering against a 
number of priorities to keep children and young people safe in their homes and in the 
community. 
 
Sustainability:  

Delivering services locally is a cross cutting priority for the partners that will support 
our ambitions to be sustainable. 

 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Diagram of Children’s Trust  
Appendix B – Membership of the Children’s Trust Board 
Appendix C – Draft Children and Young People’s Plan 
Appendix D – Overview of Children and Young People’s Plan Consultation 

Agenda Item 9
Page 18



  
A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
  

 

 
  

 
  

E
q
u
al
it
ie
s 
an
d
 

D
iv
er
si
ty
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

In
vo
lv
em

en
t 

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e 
D
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 

L
S
C
B
 

C
en
tr
al
 B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ir
e 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
eo
p
le
’s
 T
ru
st
 B
o
ar
d
 

D
ev
el
o
p
in
g
 a
rr
an
g
em

en
ts
 f
o
r 
C
en
tr
al
 B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ir
e 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
eo
p
le
’s
 T
ru
st
  

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
s 

V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 O
rg
an
is
at
io
n
s 

C
o
n
so
rt
iu
m
 

C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
 E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 

C
en
tr
al
 B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ir
e 
L
o
ca
l S
tr
at
eg
ic
 P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
  

F
iv
e 
E
ve
ry
 C
h
ild
 M
at
te
rs
 D
el
iv
er
y 

G
ro
u
p
s 

• 
S
ta
y 
S
af
e 

• 
B
e 
h
ea
lt
h
y 

• 
E
n
jo
y 
an
d
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

• 
M
ak
e 
a 
p
o
si
ti
ve
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
 

• 
A
ch
ie
ve
 e
co
n
o
m
ic
 w
el
l-
b
ei
n
g
  

Agenda Item 9
Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
Trust Board Membership                                                                                                  
Edwina Grant  Chair of Trust Board 

Director of Children, Families and Learning, Central Bedfordshire Council 
Jaki Salisbury Interim Chief Executive, Central Bedfordshire Council 
Cllr Anita Lewis Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services, Central Bedfordshire Council 
Andrew Morgan Chief Executive, NHS Bedfordshire 
Ann Nevinson Non-Executive Director, NHS Bedfordshire  
Linda Hennigan Chief Probation Officer 
Laura Eades Independent Chair Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 
To be confirmed Learning and Skills Sector 
Nigel Tompkins Detective Superintendent, Bedfordshire Police 
Michele Flynn Chair, Voluntary Organisations Consortium 
Linda Bulled Consortiums Officer, Voluntary Organisations Consortium  
To be confirmed Youth Offending Team 
To be confirmed Schools representation 
To be confirmed Parent representation 
To be confirmed Children and Young People representation 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Appendix C 
 
 
DRAFT 27 July  
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire Children and Young People’s Plan 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 23



 

 

 
2 

 
  
Foreword 3 
  
Introduction  4 
  
Our vision for Children and Young People in Central Beds  5 
  
Living in Central Bedfordshire  5 
  
Our priorities 6 
  
Cross cutting priorities 6 
What children and young people said 9 
Be Healthy 10 
Stay Safe  13 
Enjoy and Achieve  15 
Making a Positive Contribution  17 
Economic Wellbeing  19 
  
  
Appendices  
Appendix A: Our resources 21 
Appendix B: Consultation with children and young people 22 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 24



 

 

 
3 

Foreword (still to be signed off and agreed) 
 
Welcome to the first Children and Young People’s Plan for Central Bedfordshire 
 
This plan sets out our vision for children, young people and their families in Central Bedfordshire and it 
shows how we plan to achieve it. We know that most children and young people in Central 
Bedfordshire enjoy their childhood and go on to be confident and successful young adults  – we want 
to make sure that we maintain this and improve the achievements and outcomes for those children and 
young people who are not doing as well.  
 
We have set out in this plan those things we think are important to focus on over the next eighteen 
months. It is not a detailed account of all we plan to do but it does set out those things we think are 
critical to achieving our vision. There are a large number of more detailed strategies and plans which 
support the priorities set out in this plan.  
 
We would like to thank all those that have been involved in the development of the plan. In particular 
the more than 4,000 children and young people who were asked what they think is important. Their 
ideas and priorities have helped to shape this plan.  We look forward to working with children, young 
people, their families and those involved in delivering services for them, to tackle our challenges and 
celebrate our successes.  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
Cllr Anita Lewis      Edwina Grant 
Portfolioholder Children’s Services Director of Children, Families and 
Central Bedfordshire Council Learning  - Central Bedfordshire Council 

and Chair of Children’s Trust Board 

Agenda Item 9
Page 25



 

 

 
4 

Introduction  
In 2003 the Government launched the ‘Every Child Matters: Change for Children’ which set out a new 
way of thinking about how services for children, young people and their families are delivered. The 
result was the Children Act 2004 which provided the legislation for this new approach and which 
outlines the five key ‘Every Child Matters’ outcomes for all children and young people, whatever their 
background or circumstances. They are: 
 
 
To be healthy 
Enjoy good physical and mental health and live a healthy lifestyle 
 
To stay safe 
Be protected from harm and neglect and grow up able to look after themselves 
 
To enjoy and achieve 
Get the most out of life and develop broad skills for life 
 
To make a positive contribution 
To the community and society and not offend or behave in an anti-social way  
 
To achieve economic well-being 
Overcome disadvantages and achieve their full potential in life 
 
The Children Act 2004 Section 10 requires that all local authorities with a children’s services 
responsibility should make arrangements to promote cooperation between the authority and relevant 
partners with a view to improving the well-being of children and young people in the area. The Act 
establishes the Local Authority as the lead and accountable partner in such arrangements. 
 
The expectation is that these arrangements, commonly known as Children’s Trusts, should have been 
in place in all Local Authorities by the end of 2008 and that partners involved in Trusts should work 
together to develop a Children and Young People’s Plan.  
 
As a new unitary area we have set up our new Children and Young People’s Trust. At its first meeting 
in April 2009 the Trust Board agreed to put in place the following arrangements to develop and 
implement our first Children and Young People’s Plan: 
 

• a Trust Board – made up of the strategic leaders of all partners and acts as the Executive of the 
Trust, agreeing and owning the priorities in the Children and Young People’s Plan and any 
other relevant strategies;  

• a Commissioning Executive  - made up of those people who commission services from across 
the partners and its job is to understand the needs of children, young people and their families, 
work with partners to plan services around these needs and identifying the best providers to 
deliver the services; and 

• five Every Child Matters Outcome Delivery Groups – these groups are made up of key 
professionals from across the Trust who are involved in delivering services relating to the five 
Every Child Matters outcomes and they have to make sure that services are delivered 
according to the agreed priorities.  

 
There are also a number of partnerships and groups which the Trust has links with and which will 
help to deliver the priorities in the plan, including the Local Strategic Partnership, the Local 
Safeguarding Board, the Stronger Communities Thematic Partnership. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 26



 

 

 
5 

Our vision for Children and Young People in Central Beds  
We want every child in Central Bedfordshire to enjoy their childhood and have the best possible start in 
life.  We want every child to do well at school, make friends and build strong relationships with their 
family.  By the age of 19, as young adults we want every young person to have the knowledge, skills 
and qualifications that will give them the best chance of success, so that they are prepared to take their 
full place in society as a contributing, confident citizen.   
 
Living in Central Bedfordshire  
Central Bedfordshire is home to approximately 252,100 people. Around 137,000 (54.4% of the 
population) people live in the towns with 36,540 in Leighton Linslade, 35,070 in Dunstable, 17,000 in 
Houghton Regis, 16,640 in Biggleswade, 13,310 in Flitwick, 11,690 in Sandy and 6,900 in Ampthill.  
 
Around 63,000 children and young people between the ages of 0-19 live in Central Bedfordshire and 
by 2021 it is forecast that there will be about 2,000 more children aged under 16. The number of births 
in Central Bedfordshire has been around 3,000 for the last three years.  The birth rate is slightly lower 
than the England and East of England rates and Central Bedfordshire’s proportion of low birth weight 
babies is slightly lower than the East of England average.  
 
Age range of children and young people population in Central Bedfordshire, 2007 
0 – 4 15,400 
5 – 9  15,300 
10 – 14 16,100 
15 - 19 16,200 

*ONS – estimates June 2007 

 
Central Bedfordshire is generally an affluent area and many children and young people in the area 
enjoy a very good quality of life and have excellent prospects in relation to both their own future 
happiness and their contribution to their communities. The health of our children and young people 
compares well with the East of England, and to England as a whole. Achievement across the age 
range from Early Years Foundation Stage to the end of Key Stage 4 is above national averages. None 
of our schools is in an Ofsted category of concern and we are on track to have 100% of extended 
services in schools by 2010. The percentage of school leavers going onto higher education is above 
the regional and national average and we have low numbers of young people that are not in education 
employment or training (5.9%). 
 
We know however, that there is a significant minority of children and young people for whom outcomes 
are much worse than those of the rest.   
 
In terms of overall deprivation, in 2007 none of 
the areas in Central Bedfordshire were in the 
top 20% most deprived in England. However, 
for some of the individual aspects of deprivation 
(such as education, crime and income) 
communities in Dunstable, Houghton Regis, 
Flitwick and Sandy do fall into the worst 10% 
nationally. 
 
We do also have some pockets of deprivation 
and in total, nine areas in 2007 were in the top 
20% most deprived in the East of England and 
three of these were in the top 10% in the 
region. This means that around 27% of children 
in Central Bedfordshire live in low income or 
workless families and we know that children 
from poorer backgrounds are doing less well. In 

in some areas up to 50% are living in low 
income families: 
 
% and number children in low income 
families 
 
Tithe Farm 50% 750 
Parkside 49% 670 
Manshead 47% 590 
Northfields 40% 705 
Houghton Hall 38% 670 
Planets 34% 420 
Plantation 32%  415 
Dunstable Central 31% 310 
All Saints 30% 315 
Biggleswade Ivel 30% 515 
Sandy Pinnacle 30% 550 

Agenda Item 9
Page 27



 
Our Priorities 
 
Cross cutting priorities 
In order to deliver on the priorities set out in this plan there are a number of issues and programmes 
that underpin the work of all the partners. These cross cutting priorities will all have separate plans in 
place, linked to the Children and Young People’s Plan and overseen by either an Every Child Matters 
Delivery Group or the Commissioning Executive. We will need to work together on the following to 
make sure we have the right building blocks in place and address the priorities in a co-ordinated way: 
 
Improve prevention, early identification and intervention  
Recognising as early as possible when children, young people and their families need advice and 
support is one of the most effective ways of improving outcomes and it is a key cross cutting priority for 
the Central Bedfordshire Children and Young People’s Trust.  To support this work we will:  

• Implement an effective strategic plan to develop high quality, locally delivered, integrated 
services  

• Earlier identification and intervention supported by multi-agency workforce development 
programme 

• Further development of the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) and associated local 
practice initiatives 

• Develop a “Think Family” programme 
• Building on the success of our Early Years services and developing Children’s centres and our 

support for new parents and very young children 
• Intervening earlier and supporting those children, young people and families we have identified 

as being at risk: children and young people with mental health problems, children where 
domestic abuse is a factor, disabled children, looked after children, young carers, gypsy and 
travelling communities, asylum seekers and homeless children, young offenders, teenage 
mothers; and 

• providing enhanced services for families where children and young people have been identified 
as being at risk of entering the care system 

 
What success looks like 

• Local delivery of integrated services based on common processes, outstanding practise, strong 
partnerships and clearly identified pathways 

• Children, young people & families accessing appropriate services to meet their needs and lead 
to better outcomes. 

 
This approach will be supported by an effective common process for working with children, young 
people and families – the Common Assessment Framework (CAF). We are reviewing our use of the 
common assessment framework, the Development of the Lead Professional Role and the design and 
operation of multi agency panels to support this approach. 
 
 
Reducing Child Poverty  
Our long term aim is to reduce the number of children living in poverty in Central Bedfordshire. This is a 
key priority that will be monitored and reported through the ‘Economic Wellbeing’ Delivery Group and 
led out of the Stronger Communities Thematic Partnership of the Local Strategic Partnership . We aim 
to provide support to children, young people and their families who need assistance in improving their 
quality of life particularly with regard to housing, transport, parenting and early year’s intervention. To 
deliver this priority we will:  

• Develop a child poverty strategy 
• Commission services devoted to improving people’s economic well-being so that they are 

accessible to those families with the greatest need 
• Provide stable accommodation for those under threat of homelessness 
• Provide subsidised transport and services for children, young people and their families 
• Learn from other agencies who operate best practice in their support of families 
• Increase the number and use of our children’s centres 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 28



 

 

 
7 

What success looks like 
• Reduced levels of child poverty (NI 116, LAA priority) 
• Increase the range and availability of discounted services 
• Reduced levels of homelessness 
• Increased take up of childcare by low income working families 

 
Developing a locality based approach to delivering integrated services 
In order to develop a locality based approach to delivering integrated services, partners will work 
together to identify and agree the need for co-located services, identify the priority services for re-
configuration and develop plans to ensure we have integrated processes and information sharing to 
support this approach.   
 
We have an ambitious agenda to deliver a wide variety of services for children and young people that 
are co-located in local communities. Health, education and social care services will be developed into 
multi agency teams that use integrated processes and systems and the holistic, ‘Think Family’ 
approach. 
 
This integrated practice and locally based, multi agency service will be more responsive to local need 
and will make it easier and simpler for children, young people and their families to access a variety of 
services in their own locality 
 
Developing the Children’s Trust 
As a new unitary area and a new partnership we have identified a number of things we need to do to 
strengthen partnership working so that we are well equipped for jointly delivering on our priorities. A 
Trust Development Plan will be overseen by the Trust Board and to deliver this priority we will: 
• Make sure we have the right people and partners involved in the Trust and that they have 

appropriate training and information;  
• Make sure we are clear about our links and arrangements with other partnerships; 
• Make sure that we clear on what success looks like and that we monitor our progress and 

challenge each other; 
• Develop the Trust Board, our Commissioning Executive and our Delivery Groups; 
• Develop a communications strategy so that everyone knows what the Trust stands for and what it 

offers and so that children, young people, families and partners all feel informed; 
 
Increase opportunities for children and young people to play an active part in influencing the 
decisions that affect their lives and well-being 
This is a key priority that will be monitored and reported through the ‘Making a positive contribution’ 
Delivery Group. Too deliver this priority we will: 

• Develop a comprehensive youth engagement and consultation strategy and associated delivery 
plan 

• Further develop young people’s active engagement in service design, delivery, and evaluation 
in relation to all providers 

• Build on the Young People’s grant giving initiative increasing young people’s involvement in 
decisions about funding allocation 

• Improve and enhance integrated working and communication within the areas of engagement 
and consultation with children and young people 

 
What success looks like 

• Increase % of young people voting in youth cabinet elections 
• A diverse range of mechanisms in place that demonstrate young people’s involvement, voice 

and influence in decisions that affect their lives and well being 
• Engagement and consultation with young people is centrally planned and co-ordinated ensuring 

communication is a two-way process and avoiding duplication 
• Well established and promoted feedback mechanisms are in place for children and young 

people  
• Children and young people actively involved in service assessments 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 29



 

 

 
8 

Strategic commissioning 
Robust commissioning arrangements are seen as being increasingly important in making sure that 
services are effective, offer good value for money and improve outcomes for children and young 
people. During 2009 we will agree a Strategic Commissioning Framework that sets out how we will 
work together to commission cost effective, high quality services. This is a key priority for the 
Commissioning Executive. 
 
Develop an integrated workforce which is ambitious for all children and their families and 
expert in its practice  
Workforce development is the key to providing the right staff with the right skills to provide high quality 
services and transform outcomes for children, young people and their families. We are developing a 
workforce development strategy to ensure that we identify key areas of development and then put in 
place programmes to ensure new ways of working across all agencies. This is a key priority that will be 
monitored and reported through the ‘Enjoy and Achieve’ Delivery Group. To deliver this priority we will:  
• Establish and promote a shared identity, vision, language, practices and services across the 

Children’s Workforce 
• Develop integrated working and a single staff development framework based on a single needs 

analysis 
• Increase the use of Training hubs for learning in each area of Central Bedfordshire 
• Put safeguarding at the forefront of Workforce Development 
 
What success looks like 
• Regular self assessment shows progress towards integrated working  
• The Children’s workforce has shared goals, common language, flexible working practices and 

works within a common ethos 
• There is a common career development and qualifications framework that encourages movement 

across the Children’s Workforce.  
• Local needs for the recruitment, development and reform for the children’s workforce are effectively 

identified and development programmes are matched explicitly to need.  
• A single directory of workforce development has been compiled and made widely available, 

signposting both multi-agency (generic) and role specific development opportunities. 
 
Equality and diversity 
Equality is a Trust priority. Equality and diversity issues have informed the development of the plan 
throughout the process.  Each of the Every Child Matters Delivery Groups considered equalities issues 
in relation to their outcomes and identified groups or individuals that may have particular needs that are 
not being met by mainstream services.  
 
The following groups of children who are vulnerable and who may not have prospects for good 
outcomes across the Every Child Matters outcomes were identified as a priority for the Trust: children 
and young people with mental health problems, children in homes where domestic abuse is a factor, 
disabled children, looked after children, young carers, gypsy and travelling communities, asylum 
seekers and homeless children, young offenders, teenage mothers. 
 
Delivering services that support these children and young people and assessing their progress is a key 
priority that will be monitored and assessed by all the Delivery Groups and through an Equality Impact 
Assessment. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 30



 

 

 
9 

What children and young people said 
 
More than 4,000 children and young people helped shape the priorities in this Children and Young 
People’s Plan. More information on how we did this set out in Appendix B. Here are some of the things 
that children and young people said: 
 
Be Healthy 
Children and young people wanted more opportunities to lead healthy lifestyles and felt that better play 
facilities in schools grounds and more sports activities would help achieve this. They also asked for 
healthier and nice school meals.  
 
“More stuff on healthy lifestyles” 
“More accessible contraception coz some places want all your details if you ask for it” 
 
Stay Safe 
Children and young people wanted safe areas to live and play and they wanted action to stop bullying 
out of school. They also felt it was important to stop bad behaviour and crime in their areas and for 
children and the Police to have more opportunities to talk.  
 
“Stop big groups of young people walking around at night” 
“Stop gang culture” 
 
Enjoy and Achieve 
Help to do better at school was something that children and young people wanted and they also 
wanted more rewards for behaving and doing well at school.    
 
“After school club to help us with Maths and English” 
“Young peoples celebration - like Young People of The Year Awards” 
 
Make a positive contribution 
As mentioned above children and young people want more rewards for behaving and doing well. In 
particular they wanted to see good things about young people in newspapers and the media. They also 
felt that they needed more things to do, such as more groups and clubs to join and play schemes. 
Cheaper transport to get to places was highlighted as an issue and they were concerned that  families 
who might need help to pay for activities for their children were supported.  
 
“More music concerts - stuff for us to do, could have stalls on drug and alcohol too.” 
“Good website that says all the stuff you can do and is up to date.” 
 
Economic wellbeing 
As mentioned above children and young people thought there should be help for families who need it 
to pay for activities. They also thought that there should be more job opportunities for young people.  
 
“We need more help on what we should do after leaving school” 
 
We will be developing a children and young people’s summary version of the plan so that they can 
easily see what we plan to do and also to show that we have listened to what they told us. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 31



 

 

 
10 

Be Healthy 
 
What we know 
• Health and wellbeing of children in Central Bedfordshire generally compares well to the rest of the 
East of England, and to England as a whole 

In 2008/09: 
• 77% of women in Bedfordshire* accessed antenatal care within 12 weeks of pregnancy (against a 
target of 80%) 

• 15% of pregnant women in Bedfordshire* were reported to be smoking at time of delivery 
• 72% of women in Bedfordshire* initiated breastfeeding after delivery (against a target of 75%) 
• 40% of women in Central Bedfordshire were still breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks after delivery (against 
a target of 39%) 

• All immunisation targets were met except for MMR at age 5 years which was 72% against a target 
of 76% for Central Bedfordshire.   

• 72% of schools in Central Bedfordshire have achieved National Healthy Schools Status  
• In 2008/09 Central Bedfordshire recorded 8% of children in school year R as obese, and 14.3% of 
children in school year 6 as obese. 

• Central Bedfordshire showed a teenage conception rate of 28.5, based on 2004-6 data. There is on 
average a 2 year lag time with this data set from ONS. However local intelligence suggests that 
teenage conception rates remain of concern in Central Bedfordshire, with particular ‘hot spot’ areas 
in Houghton Hall, Manshead, Tithe Farm, Parkside and Heath and Reach.  

• In 2008 16% boys and 18% girls in Central Bedfordshire reported to be smoking occasionally or 
regularly.   

• Data suggest levels of drug use remain relatively stable amongst young people with slight 
increases or decreases across the 4 year period from 2004-2008. 

• Alcohol use has tended to remain stable with slight increases recorded in 2006. For example, those 
drinking between 4-20 units was recorded at 32% in 2004, increased to 39% in 2006 and fell again 
to 33% in 2008. 

• The following have been identified as children in vulnerable circumstances who may have poorer 
health outcomes: children and young people with mental health problems, disabled children, looked 
after children, young carers, gypsy and travelling communities; asylum seekers and homeless 
children.  

 
*Central Bedfordshire data not currently available 

 
What we are going to do 
 
Priority 1: Ensure a healthy start to life - including early access to antenatal care, reducing  
smoking and improving nutrition in pregnancy, promoting breastfeeding and increasing 
immunisation and vaccinations 
Strategic actions 

• Improve choices for women to book – increase numbers of midwifery led and community based 
booking clinics 

• Promote multi-agency approach to improved ante, peri and postnatal care for women, utilising 
acute and community healthcare services and Children’s Centres 

• Improve antenatal and postnatal breastfeeding support, through the implementation of the 
Healthy Child Programme and targeted programmes of work such as peer counsellors 

• Achieve UNICEF Baby Friendly status in the community 
• Expand stop smoking services for pregnant women, both through the Bedfordshire Stop 

Smoking Service and increased training provision to maternity and Children’s Centre staff  
• Support women to prevent re-starting smoking after delivery  

 
What success looks like 

• Increase in the number of women accessing antenatal care within 12 weeks of pregnancy to 
85% in 2009/10  

• Increase in breastfeeding initiation to 77% by 2009/10 and the continuation of breastfeeding to 
achieve a 6-8 week breastfeeding rate of 41% 2009/10 (NI 53) 

Agenda Item 9
Page 32



 

 

 
11 

• Reduce smoking during pregnancy to 15% or less in 2009/10 
 

 
Priority 2: Ensuring children and young people are able to make responsible decisions in 
relation to drugs, alcohol, and sexual health  
Strategic actions 

• Ensure services are targeted in line with identified need, particularly teenage pregnancy 
services 

• Improve the quality of Personal, Social and Health Education in schools  
• Enhance our family services, particularly services for young parents and those effected by 

drugs and alcohol issues  
• Improve the quality of specialist drugs/alcohol treatment, particularly planned discharges  
• Roll out new locality sexual health services across Bedfordshire 
• Continue to increase uptake of chlamydia screening services  

 
What success looks like 

• Reduce smoking rates among young people from 13% to 9%, and to stop young people from 
starting to smoke in 2009/10 

• Reduce numbers of young people misusing substances, including drugs and alcohol to 11.85% 
in 2009/10 (NI 115, LAA priority) 

• Reduce teenage conception rate to 23.2 per thousand (NI 112) 
• Increase rates of Chlamydia screening for 15 to 24 year olds to 25% 

 
 
Priority 3: Promoting, protecting and treating the mental and emotional health of children and 
young people  
Strategic actions 

• Early intervention services need to be further developed and integrated to ensure prompt and 
timely support for children and young people with emerging mental health problems 

• Continued development of the knowledge and skills of all those working with children and 
young people 

• The development of services for children and young people with complex mental health needs  
• Alignment of CAMH and Children’s Learning Disability Services 

 
What success looks like 

• To improve the effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health services, as rated through 
the self assessment framework. In 2008/09 a score of 13 was achieved, against a target of 13. 
The 2009/10 self assessment target is 15. (NI 151, LAA priority) 

 
 

Priority 4: Supporting children and young people to lead healthy lifestyles including reducing 
smoking and childhood obesity and increasing physical activity and healthy eating  
Strategic actions 

• Promote the Change 4 Life programme to all communities 
• Increase capacity of childhood obesity management programmes 
• Expand current 0-5 years healthy living programmes 
• Develop and deliver new childhood obesity prevention programmes 
• Deliver the National Child Measurement Programme to regional and national targets 
• Provide a range of programmes within the extended services communities to up skill and 

empower parents to better manage their children’s healthy weight 
 

What success looks like 
• Reduced childhood obesity to 13.6% (NI56, LAA priority)  
• 75% of schools in Central Bedfordshire will have achieved National Healthy Schools status by 

December 2009 (local indicator) 
• Take up of school lunches (NI 52) 

Agenda Item 9
Page 33



 

 

 
12 

 
 
Priority 5: Transforming services for disabled children 
Strategic actions 

• Ensure the delivery of the Aiming High for Disabled children programme, in particular the 
transformation of short break services in line with the national indicators, priorities and 
timescales. 

• Ensure that the strategic objectives of Better Care; Better Lives are implemented  
• Improve data available on numbers of disabled children and types of disability. 
• Continue the roll out of the Early Support programme for disabled children 0 – 5 years  
• Deliver of the Transition Improvement Plan 
• Ensure parents, disabled children and young people are fully involved in the shaping and 

delivery of services 
• Develop the workforce to deliver transformation 

 
What success looks like 

• Positive response from parents to the NI54 indicator on parental satisfaction. (NI 54) 
• Substantial increase in short break provision which offers a range of options 
• Improved access to services for disabled children and young people 
• Children and young people with palliative care needs and those requiring end of life care have 

clear plans  
• Transparent transition pathway in place for all disabled young people 14+ 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 34



 

 

 
13 

Stay Safe 
 
What we know 

• The majority of children and young people feel safe 
• 15% of boys and 13% of girls said they had been the victim of violence or aggression in the last 

12 months in the area where they lived 
• 35% of girls report feeling they are afraid of going to school because of bullying compared to 

16% of boys 
• 3,000 contacts in Bedfordshire for whom domestic violence has been recorded by children’s 

social care 
• Above average rates of death for young males under 15 per 100,00 compared to England and 

the East of England  
 

What we are going to do 
 
Priority 6: To protect Children and young people from harm by providing a co-ordinated and 
effective safeguarding process 
Strategic actions 

• Work closely with Trust partners to establish processes for identifying and responding to 
children whose safety is, or is likely to be, compromised. 

• Establish a separate and effective Local Safeguarding Children Board by 2010. 
• To engage with and deliver Central Bedfordshire’s aspect of the Regional Improvement and 

Efficiency partnership (RIEP) safeguarding programme (ESP) so that high quality, evidence 
based, safeguarding practice is consistently delivered. 

 
What success looks like 

• New Central Bedfordshire Safeguarding Children Board is functioning effectively. 
• The children’s workforce configured and trained to meet the Trust’s safeguarding objectives, co-

operating in a consistent, responsive and effective manner.  
• Children & Young People report feeing safer and know how to access help should it be needed 

from a trusted source. 
• Inspections of Safeguarding services result in positive judgements about the effectiveness of 

those services. 
 
 
Priority 7: Reducing the impact of domestic abuse on children and young people 
Strategic actions 

• Align activity which is intended to reduce the impact of domestic abuse within the LSCB 
business plan and Community Safety Partnership Domestic Abuse plan 

• Integrate research and best practise into multi-disciplinary training programmes so that the 
workforce is equipped to identify and respond to children exposed to domestic abuse. 

• Review the multi-agency Domestic Abuse protocol 
• Develop and commission an appropriate range of services to respond to and reduce the impact 

of domestic abuse on children and young people 
 
What success looks like 

• Clear identification of children and young people in situations of domestic abuse receiving an 
appropriate, timely and effective response. 

• Children and young people report that they feel safer 
 

 
Priority 8: Reducing the incidence and impact of bullying on children and young people 
Strategic actions 

• Further develop the Anti-Bullying Strategy to include out of school bullying 
• Incorporate bullying awareness into the Workforce Development Strategy 
• Align anti-social behaviour strategy and anti-bullying strategy to ensure early identification and 

response 

Agenda Item 9
Page 35



 

 

 
14 

 
What success looks like 

• Children and young people report feeling safer 
• Incidence of bullying reduces 

Agenda Item 9
Page 36



 

 

 
15 

Enjoy and Achieve 
 
What we know 
• Most children up until the age of 7 are doing well and achieving at Key Stage 1 with 79 out of 96 

lower schools currently seen as good or outstanding 
• On track to have 100% of extended services in schools by 2010 
• Children and young people at the ages of 11 and 16 perform less well that those in other areas and 

only 14 out of 33 middle and upper schools are seen as good or outstanding   
• Rate of fixed term exclusions is increasing 
• Children in certain groups do not achieve as well as their peers (boys, some ethnic minorities, 

children who are looked after and children on free school meals) 
• Contact with nature, access to the countryside and outdoor activities, play, sport and leisure all 

have significant and beneficial impacts on families, children and young people 
 
What we are going to do 
 
Priority 9: To transform teaching and learning and strengthen leadership to ensure that every 
school and early years’ setting is at least good. 
 
Strategic actions 
• Ensure schools and settings have the right targeted support with a focus on prevention and early 

intervention 
• To strengthen leadership in schools and settings by identifying, developing and retaining leadership 

talent  
• Develop a vision for future learning in Central Bedfordshire which has an innovative, engaging and 

continuous curriculum which is centred around the learner and which ensures that children and 
young people experience effective transitions within and between each place of learning  

 
What success looks like 
• Increase % of upper schools judged as good from X to X by 2011 
• Increase % of lower and middle schools judged as good from X to  X by 2011 
• Increase % settings judged as good from X to X by 2011 
 
Priority 10: Raising achievement for all learners particularly underachieving groups and 
children in vulnerable circumstances. 
 
Strategic actions 
• Develop a culture for learning which is based on high aspirations for all 
• Develop collaborative approaches to leadership and learning for the benefit of all learners 
• Develop high quality learning environments 
• To promote a supportive, caring climate for learning to improve enjoyment of learning for all and to 

reduce levels of unacceptable behaviour and persistent absence  
• To promote Social, Emotional Health and Well-being 
• Improve the core skills of literacy, numeracy and ICT by supporting schools in developing effective 

strategies and teaching approaches geared to narrow achievement gaps 
• Improve progress tracking and improve learner progression 
• Develop and commission a range of targeted, early intervention programmes for children and 

young people in vulnerable circumstances 
 
What success looks like 
• Reduction in the number of schools judged as requiring special measures (NI 89) 
• Take up of 14-19 learning diplomas (NI 90) 
• Participation of 17 year-old in education and training (NI 91) 
• Emotional health of children is achieved (NI 50) 
• Secondary schools judged as having good or outstanding standards of behaviour (NI 86) 
• Achievement of at least 78 points across EYFS (NI 73) 
• Achievement at level 4 or above in English and Maths at KS2 (NI 73) 

Agenda Item 9
Page 37



 

 

 
16 

• Achievement of 5 or more A*-C grades at GCSE or equivalent inc. English and Maths (NI 75) 
• Achievement at Level 4 or above in English and Maths at KS2 (above floor target of 55%) (NI 76) 
• Reduction in number of schools below 30% A*-C inc. English and Maths at GCSE (NI 78) 
• Achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19 (NI 79) 
• Achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19 (NI 80)  
• Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3 by the age of 19 (NI 81) 
• Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3 by the age of 19 (NI 82)  
• Achievement of 2 or more A*-C grades in Science GCSEs or equivalents (NI 84) 
• Post-16 participation in physical sciences (NI 85)  
• Learners achieving a Level 1 qualification in Literacy (NI 161) 
• Learners achieving a Level 1 qualification in Numeracy (NI 162) 
• Narrowing the gap between the lowest achieving 20% in Early Years Foundation Stage Profile and 

the rest (NI 92) 
• Children in care reaching level 4 in English at KS2 (NI 99) 
• Children in care reaching level 4 in Maths at KS2 (NI 100) 
• Children in care achieving 5 A*-C GCSEs or equivalents at KS4, including English and Maths (NI 

101) 
• Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their peers achieving the 

expected level at KS2 and KS4 (NI 102) 
• The SEN/non SEN gap –achieving KS2 English and Maths (NI 104) 
• The SEN/non SEN gap –achieving 5 A*-C including English and Maths (NI 105) 
• KS2 attainment for Black and Minority ethnic groups (NI 107) 
• GCSE attainment for Black and Minority ethnic groups (NI 108) 
• Progression by 2 levels in English between KS1 and KS2 (NI 93) 
• Progression by 2 levels in Maths between KS1 and KS2 (NI 94) 
• Secondary school Persistent Absence rate (NI 87) 
• Rate of permanent exclusions from school (NI 114) 
 
 
Priority 11:  Improving engagement and enjoyment for all children and young people  
 
Strategic actions 
• Improving extended school services, out of hours learning, and a wide range of outdoor 

recreational and play activities and opportunities including volunteering 
• A programme of positive, out-of-hours/extra-curricular activities for children and families that 

involves innovative approaches to learning, play and recreation at a range of localities  
• Pyramids of schools to produce comprehensive development plans for out-of-hours learning  and 

positive activities and submit these to the LA along with regular financial breakdowns of spend to 
date 

• Develop Playing for Success study support programme within Central Bedfordshire  
• Providing effective support for children who are not engaged with learning and are at risk of 

exclusion 
• Provide local and effective support through short stay schools and other interventions for children 

who are not engaged with learning and who are at risk of exclusion  
• Establish and strengthen behaviour and attendance partnerships within four geographical localities 
• Develop parental involvement from the start regarding support and consultation structures 
 
What success looks like 
• 85% of schools meet the full core offer of extended services by Sept 2009  
• all schools meeting full core offer by 2010 
 
Enjoy and achieve – supporting plans 

• Transforming Learning/BSF (Business Transformation Project) 
• Locality Based Services (Business Transformation Project) 
• Workforce Development Strategy (Business Improvement Project) 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 38



 

 

 
17 

Making a Positive Contribution 
 
What we know 
• Children and young people allocated £1.7 million in grants for positive activities projects 
• Anecdotal evidence of a wide range of activities on offer for children and young people 
• Too many young people in custody  
• There is a perceived gap in provision for 8-13 year olds in relation to positive activities  
• Only 52% of boys and 41% of girls consider themselves fit or very fit aged 12-13 and only 52% of 

boys and 25% of girls consider themselves fit aged 14-15 
• Perceived under representation on fora from children and young people with special education 

needs, disabilities and from particular communities  
 
What we are going to do  
 
Priority 12: Reduce anti-social behaviour and promote children and young people’s positive 
contribution to communities across Central Bedfordshire 
 
Strategic actions 

• Enhance the anti-bullying strategy to incorporate bullying out of the school  
• Develop and promote a positive images campaign to promote and champion children and 

young people’s achievement and contribution  
• Offer and promote positive activities for children and young people at key times including Friday 

evenings and weekends 
• Create opportunities for young people to engage in volunteering 
• Improve access to a range of high quality outdoor formal and natural play spaces 
• Delivery of the strengthening families 10 – 14 and Triple P parenting programmes across 

Central Bedfordshire 
• Start up and delivery of the Family Intervention Project, providing intensive support to families in 

the greatest difficulty with children at risk of offending 
 
What success looks like 

• Reduce incidents of anti-social behaviour 
• Positive images of young people on display consistently across the authority in significant 

places for young people and the wider community 
• 150-200 parents participating in evidence based parenting programmes annually 
• % of parents and young people participating in parenting programme demonstrating 

improvements (Parents have extended their knowledge and understanding of child 
development and behaviour. Parents demonstrate positive parenting and problem solving skills 
with greater belief in the competence) 

• Reduction in the number of family members involved in Anti Social Behaviour 
• Reach: The Youth Service reaches 25% of the 13-19 population  
• Participation: The Youth Service is in regular contact with 15% of the 13-19 population  
• Recorded Outcomes: 60% of 13-19 year olds participating in youth work receive a recorded 

outcome  
• Accredited Outcomes: 30% of 13-19 year olds participating in youth work receive an accredited 

outcome. 
 
 
Priority 13: Reducing youth offending  
Strategic actions 

• Reduce re-offending rates amongst young people 
• Reduce first time entrants in to the Youth Justice System 

 
What success looks like 

• Achieving National targets relating to youth offending 
• Perception of crime reduced 

Agenda Item 9
Page 39



 

 

 
18 

 
 
Priority 14: Promoting and providing activities for all children and young people and their 
families, ensuring that the hard to reach and those with disabilities can take part in mainstream 
activities 
 
Strategic actions 

• Increase Children and Young People’s participation in positive activities 
• Enhance and further develop accessible information, advice and guidance provision for 

children, young people and families. (Develop an Information, Advice and Guidance strategy) 
• Enhance integrated working between providers to enhance existing opportunities for children, 

young people and families 
• Further develop and promote play, leisure, sport and cultural opportunities for children and 

young people aged 8-13 
• Further shape and deliver services for disabled children and young people following 

participation 
 

What success looks like 
• Increase the % of young people participating in positive activities to 82.9% by 2011 (NI 110, 

LAA priority) 
• Development of One Stop Shops offering Information, advice and guidance 
• Demonstrable evidence in future service delivery that we had been able to incorporate the 

views and wishes of young people with disabilities in options of provision to meet their needs 
and that they can recognise their input 

 
 
Priority 15: Strengthen and improve relationships within families by encouraging positive 
parenting 
 

Strategic actions 
• Strengthen communities through innovative family and community involvement 
• Implementing Think family reforms across Children, health and adult services 
• Delivery of Parenting Early Intervention Programme 
• Support and maintain existing parenting support services 
 
What success looks like 
• key outcomes for Be Healthy are delivered: reduced smoking rates among young people, 

reduced numbers of young people misusing substances, including drugs and alcohol and 
reduced teenage conception rates 

• key outcomes for Enjoy and Achieve are delivered: improved achievement, behaviour and 
attendance  

• Xx% of parents completing parenting programmes or individual casework support 
demonstrating improvements (parents and their children communicate effectively and 
respectfully. Parents demonstrate positive parenting and problem solving skills with greater 
belief in their competence) 

• % of parents surveyed report sustained benefits 
• Protocols in place across children’s, health and adult services for identifying, referring and 

planning how the needs of other family members can be met alongside those of their client 
 

 
Making a positive contribution  – supporting plans 

• Integrated Youth Support Plan  
• Information, Advice and Guidance Strategy 
• NEET Strategy 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 40



 

 

 
19 

Economic Wellbeing 
 

What we know 
• Children from poorer backgrounds are doing less well and are more likely to die from an accident in 
childhood, have low educational achievement, turn to crime, be poor as an adult and raise their own 
children in poverty 

• 27% of children in Central Bedfordshire live in low income families and 12% live in workless families.  
In parts of Houghton Regis and Dunstable between 45% and 50% of children live in low income 
households 

• The inequality gap at age 19 for achievement at either level 2(GCSE or equivalent)  or level 3 (A level 
or equivalent) places Bedfordshire in the bottom quartile 

• Low levels of young people going on to higher education in Tithe Farm (7.9%), Parkside (10.5%), 
Biggleswade Stratton (11.7%) and Sandy Pinnacle (12.8%) compared to England (24.3%). 
Northfields, Dunstable Central, Manshead, Planets and Houghton Hall also fall below the England 
average   

• Around 6% of 16 to 18 year olds are not in education, employment or training (NEET)  
• 66.7% of care leavers in employment education and training – this is above the national average 
(64.9%) but below the region and comparator authorities (68%) 

 
Priority 16:  Develop a locality approach in reducing the number of young people Not in 
Employment Education or training, targeting those areas with the highest NEET levels. 
 
Strategic actions 

• Develop one stop shop multi-agency settings in our four priority areas 
• Identify needs and interests of NEET young people and work with employers, colleges and 

training providers to develop appropriate opportunities 
• Ensure all young people receive a comprehensive and high quality programme of careers 

education, information, advice and guidance to support effective decision making in relation to 
learning and/or work 

 
What success looks like 

• Reduced % of NEET from 5.8% to 5% by 2011 (NI 117, LAA priority) 
 

 
Priority 17: Work with employers, colleges and schools to increase the range and quality of 
local training, volunteering and job opportunities. 
Strategic actions 

• Co-ordinate the promotion of local job opportunities 
• Increase the range of services in school settings 
• Provide increased training and work experiences for 14-16 year olds 
• Develop our workforce’s ability to serve our customers 
• Develop apprenticeship opportunities within public services 

 
What success looks like 

• More jobs, volunteering and training opportunities will be provided 
• Increase in the number of apprenticeships available 

 
 
Priority 18: Inspire our most vulnerable young people to raise their aspirations and provide 
integrated support particularly to Care leavers, young offenders, young carers, young people 
with physical and learning disabilities, gypsy and traveller children and teenage parents. 
 
Strategic actions 

• Provide support to parents of excluded children 
• Consult children and their families at regular intervals 
• Develop information sharing protocols with colleges and training providers to improve transition 

support at 16+ 

Agenda Item 9
Page 41



 

 

 
20 

• Actively engage with Aim Higher to raise aspirations of young people 
 

What success looks like 
• Every child leaving care has a pathway plan 
• Achievement of level 2 and 3 qualifications of vulnerable young people 
• Increased entrants into higher education 
• Increased number of care leavers and young offenders entering NEET category 

 
 
Economic wellbeing – supporting plans 

• Child poverty strategy 
• Strategy for change 
• Homelessness strategy 
• Workforce strategy 
• Economic strategy 
• Cultural strategy 

Agenda Item 9
Page 42



 

 

 
21 

Appendix A: Our resources 
 
CYPP Resources 
This section to be developed.   

Agenda Item 9
Page 43



 

 

 
22 

Appendix B: Consultation with Children and Young People  
 

The consultation with children and young people was conducted in 3 stages  
 

Stage 1: 
 
We asked a number of youth groups ‘what they would like Central Bedfordshire to do for 
them’. Groups varied and included: Hurricane, Connexions Teenage Pregnancy group, Potton 
Travellers, Young Carers, Urban dance groups, Looked After Children, Youth Cabinet, African 
Caribbean and various disability groups. This exercise allowed the children and young people 
to say what they feel is a priority for them.  
 
Total number of children and young people consulted were 550.  

 
Stage 2: 
 
Following on from stage 1, we then collated all of the answers and produced a questionnaire 
that was then taken into 3 lower schools (Meppershall, Hadrian and Robert Peel) 3 middle 
schools (Parkfields, Burgoyne and Edward Peake) and 3 upper schools (Stratton, Samuel 
Whitbread and Sandy). Using a voting system the children and young people were asked to 
vote for their 1st and 2nd choice on what service providers should do for them. The second 
stage was fun and interactive, with the children, young people and teachers being able to see 
the results straight away. 
 
Total number of children and young people consulted were 1050.   
 
Stage 3: 
 
To test that we had understood children and young people’s priorities we then organised a 
final consultation exercise. Based on what the children and young people said in stage 1 and 
stage 2, we then produced a questionnaire which set out  ‘What young people have told us’ 
and ‘What we are going to do’. The main aim of the consultation was to clarify that we 
understood what the children and young people of Central Bedfordshire were saying to us. 
Stage 3 involved visiting different lower, middle and upper schools. Schools who took part in 
stage 3 included: Potton Lower, St Georges Lower, Thomas Johnson Lower, Southill Lower, 
Hitchmead Special School, Henlow Middle, Arnold Middle, Holmemead Middle, Redborne 
Upper, Vandyke Upper, Queensbury Upper and Harlington Upper, 2670. 
 
In addition to this we had 81 responses online.  
 
Total number of children and young people consulted with were 4351. 
 
 
By undertaking 3 different stages we have achieved both qualitative and quantitative results 
from children and young people who live or go to school in Central Bedfordshire. All of the 
results have been broken down further into: gender, demographical area, schools and 
ethnicity. 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 44



 
Appendix D 

 
 

Overview of Consultation with Children and Young People for the Central 
Bedfordshire Children and Young People’s Plan  

 
 

The consultation with children and young people was conducted in 3 stages  
 

Stage 1: 
 
We asked a number of youth groups ‘what they would like Central Bedfordshire to do for them’. Groups 
varied and included: Hurricane, Connexions Teenage Pregnancy group, Potton Travellers, Young 
Carers, Urban dance groups, Looked After Children, Youth Cabinet, African Caribbean and various 
disability groups. This exercise allowed the children and young people to say what they feel is a priority 
for them.  
 
Total number of children and young people consulted were 550.  

 
Stage 2: 
 
Following on from stage 1, we then collated all of the answers and produced a questionnaire that was 
then taken into 3 lower schools (Meppershall, Hadrian and Robert Peel) 3 middle schools (Parkfields, 
Burgoyne and Edward Peake) and 3 upper schools (Stratton, Samuel Whitbread and Sandy). Using the 
PP voting system the children and young people were asked to vote for their 1st and 2nd choice on 
what service providers should do for them. The second stage was fun and interactive, with the children, 
young people and teachers being able to see the results straight away. 
 
Total number of children and young people consulted were 1050.   
 
Stage 3: 
 
To test that we had understood children and young people’s priorities we then organised a final 
consultation exercise. Based on what the children and young people said in stage 1 and stage 2, we 
then produced a questionnaire which set out  ‘What young people have told us’ and ‘What we are going 
to do’. The main aim of the consultation was to clarify that we understood what the children and young 
people of Central Bedfordshire were saying to us. Stage 3 involved visiting different lower, middle and 
upper schools. Schools who took part in stage 3 included: Potton Lower, St Georges Lower, Thomas 
Johnson Lower, Southill Lower, Hitchmead Special School, Henlow Middle, Arnold Middle, Holmemead 
Middle, Redborne Upper, Vandyke Upper, Queensbury Upper and Harlington Upper, 2670. 
 
In addition to this we had 81 responses online.  
 
Total number of children and young people consulted with were 4351. 
 
 
By undertaking 3 different stages we have achieved both qualitative and quantitative results from 
children and young people who live or go to school in Central Bedfordshire. All of the results have been 
broken down further into: gender, demographical area, schools and ethnicity. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting:  
 

Children, Families and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 August 2009 

Subject:  Consultation on the future of Special Schools in the east 
of Central Bedfordshire 
 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children, Families and Learning 

Summary: The report outlines the options for the future of special schooling in the 
East of Central Bedfordshire in the light of the recommendations of the 
SEN Review, and the decision made by the Executive on 23 June 2009 
to move forward to first stage consultation. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer:  Martin Pratt, Assistant Director Specialist Services 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1. that the Overview & Scrutiny Committee have the opportunity to comment 

on, and clarify the process by which, the Executive decision of 23 June 
2009 is implemented and to advise the Executive. 
 

 (a) At its meeting on the 23 June 2009 the Executive of Central 
Bedfordshire Council decided that: 
 
The Council carries out a formal consultation on the options for the 
future of special schooling in the east of Central Bedfordshire 
during Autumn 2009, in order to inform the Executive’s future 
decision making. 
 
This is so that the Council begins to  discharge its duty to consult in 
order to secure the future of special school provision in an efficient way 
that meets the needs of children and young people with complex needs 
 
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. 
 

This paper sets out the process for the first stage consultation. It identifies 4 
possible options but the consultation process will allow for any other option to 
be submitted for consideration by the Executive. 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 47



2. 
 

The first stage consultation will start in the Autumn Term and will last for 6 
weeks.  All interested parties will be invited to respond, and the Council will 
ensure that the consultation is as broad as possible. Statutory consultation will 
follow if any proposal for structural changes arise. 
 

Background  
 
3. 
 

On 29 January 2008, Bedfordshire County Council’s Executive considered a 
report on the future of Special Educational Needs (SEN) following a formal 
review. The report made a number of recommendations to improve provision for 
SEN.      
 

4. 
 

At its meeting on 6 June 2008, the Central Bedfordshire Transition Task Force – 
Children, Young People and Families, discussed the outcomes of the SEN 
review. It noted the recommendation of Bedfordshire County Council that this 
work should continue. It agreed to recommend that the new Council endorse the 
concept of Area Special Schools described in this report.  
 

5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In summary, the review proposed the development of Area Special Schools, 
each with 150-160 places for children and young people aged 3-19 years, 
making provision for all children with complex learning needs.  This type of 
school would therefore provide for the combination of needs currently met by 
both schools for children and young people with moderate learning difficulties 
(MLD) and those with severe and profound and multiple learning difficulties 
(SLD / PMLD). The report recommended a staged approach to implementation 
of the strategy.  
 

6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The report identified particular concerns in relation to Hitchmead and 
Sunnyside schools, because numbers in Hitchmead School have reduced 
significantly while numbers in Sunnyside School have risen. In the case of 
Hitchmead this is principally because mainstream schools have become better 
able to meet the needs of pupils with moderate learning difficulties (MLD) and 
prepare them for future success in an adult environment.  This was also 
achieved in similar schools in the authority (see section 9 below). 

7. 
 
 
 
 

Hitchmead school, which provides for children with moderate learning 
difficulties aged 7 – 16, is anticipated to have 41 pupils on roll for September 
2009, with one possible additional admission. These numbers make it 
increasingly difficult to organise classes and deliver the full curriculum. 

8. Sunnyside School for children aged 3 – 19 with Severe and Profound and 
Multiple Learning Difficulties (SLD and PMLD) currently has more children on 
roll than the building is able to accommodate, with requests for placement 
increasing. It currently has classes based at Langford Lower School, 
Holmemead Middle School, Stratton Upper School and Hitchmead School.  
Anticipated numbers for September 09 are 100 with one possible additional 
admission. 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 48



 
Pupil numbers 
 
9. According to the January 2009 figures, there were 149 pupils in total in the two 

schools (Jan 2009 Pupil Level Annual School Corus (PLASC)).  Pupil numbers 
have reduced over the past five years in the MLD Schools due to greater 
expertise in mainstream schools, and it is anticipated that this trend will 
continue.  There are increased pupil numbers in the SLD schools generally due 
to the increasing number of children with more complex needs and the 
development of provision for children locally who might have previously gone to 
out of County schools.   
 

 Hitchmead 
 

 
10. 

 
 
 
 
 

Of the numbers for September 2009, 2 are Hertfordshire County Council 
children, 6 are Bedford Borough Council children and 1 is a Luton Borough 
Council child.  
 

PUPIL 
NOS 

Jan 
05 

Jan 
06 

Jan 
07 

Jan 
08 

Jan 
09 

Jan 
10 

Jan 
11 

TOTAL 88 80 64 54 51 42 32 

 Sunnyside 

 
11. 

 
PUPIL 
NOS 

Jan 
05 

Jan 
06 

Jan 
07 

Jan 
08 

Jan 
09 

Jan 
10 

Jan 
11 

TOTAL 82 80 86 98 98 100 100 
 

Of the numbers for September 2009 include 18 from Bedford Borough Council, 
2 from Hertfordshire County Council and 1 from Luton Borough Council.  
 

The Consultation  
 
12. The following options have been agreed by the Executive for consultation 

 
 (a) 

 
Option A: The merger of Hitchmead School and Sunnyside School to 
provide one Area Special School utilising both sites.  This will result in 
the re-designation of the merged school as one Area Special School.  In 
order to do this 1 school will effectively go through a process of closure.  
The new school can have a new name. 
 

 (b) 
 

Option B: The closure of Hitchmead School and the redistribution of 
children to the other MLD school (Weatherfield School) in Central 
Bedfordshire or an MLD school in their own Local Authority 
 

 (c) 
 

Option C: Status quo. 
 

Agenda Item 10
Page 49



 (d) 
 
 
 

Option D: The closure of both schools and a re-provision of a new 
school which would become the subject of a competitive process for 
provision, unless there was a special dispensation from the Secretary of 
State. 

 (e) Option E: Any other proposal that comes forward during the period of 
consultation.  

13. A consultation document is currently being drafted and will be available for 
circulation at the meeting. 
 

 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities:  
This recommendation meets Council Priority 2 – Educating, protecting and providing 
opportunities for children and young people. 
 
Financial:  

If the decision were taken to merge Hitchmead with Sunnyside schools, this would 
release £111,000 of revenue funding to be distributed through the special school 
formula.  The availability of additional accommodation to support Sunnyside pupils 
would enable more children to have their needs met locally who might otherwise be 
placed out of county due to a lack of available places at a saving of up to £300,000 
per year per pupil. 
 
If the decision were taken to close the Hitchmead school site this would release a 
further £69k and would potentially provide the opportunity to dispose of the site which 
is within the Bedfordshire East Schools Trust (BEST).  The relocation of pupils to other 
MLD schools would result in a significant increase to the transport costs (the other 
MLD school in Central Bedfordshire is in Dunstable). 
 
Legal:  

There will be a requirement to follow the statutory process for schools reorganisation if 
proposals to change the status of schools ensue. 
 
There are legal implications regarding the land as set out below. 
 

When a Foundation, Trust or Voluntary School is being closed and discontinued those 
persons holding land for the purposes of the school are required to apply to the 
Secretary of State to decide what should happen to any land used by the school that 
has been provided, acquired or enhanced at public expense. (Part II Schedule 22 
School Standards and Framework Act 1998 as amended by schedule 4 Education Act 
2006).   

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 50



 
Briefly the Secretary of State's power allows him/her to: 
 
1.  require the land to be transferred to the schools maintaining local authority; 
2.  allow the governing body, foundation body or trustees to retain the land; or 
3.  require the land to be transferred to another maintained school 
 
He/she also has the power to require the payment of compensation wherever he/she 
considers this appropriate. 
 
Risk Management:  

There is a risk in taking no action as the Council would be failing in its duty to provide 
an efficient education for children and young people with special educational needs. 
 
Failure to consult on any proposals and leaving the future to chance could result in 
litigation and damage to the Council’s reputation. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions):  

The options would require specific consultation with all staff and unions, as part of the 
overall process.  Unions have been kept updated with the recommendations of the 
SEN Review and work of the Steering Group. 
 
Equalities/Human Rights:  

During the statutory consultation a full range of opportunities will be given to ensure 
that all consultees have the opportunity to make a response by a means that is 
accessible to them and meets their needs. 
 
Community Safety:  

Pupils will continue to travel to specialist provision outside their home area. 
 
Sustainability:  

If a decision involves any capital development, wherever possible opportunities will be 
maximised for incorporating energy efficiency and sustainability measures.  The 
environmental impact of all options will be fully appraised. 

 
Appendices: 
None. 

 

Agenda Item 10
Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Meeting: Children, Families and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 August 2009 

Subject: Next steps on Transforming Teaching and Learning in 
Central Bedfordshire 
 

Report of: Deputy Chief Executive/Director of Children, Families and Learning 

Summary: This report was requested by the Committee at its meeting of 14 July 
2009. This was for the Committee to advise the Portfolio Holders for 
Children’s Services and Culture and Skills. The Portfolio Holder for 
Children’s Services has the legal responsibility and the Portfolio Holder 
for Culture and Skills oversees capital across the Directorate. This is 
with a view to the report planned to be put to the Executive on 15 
September 2009. 
 
Members of the Scrutiny Committee are invited to comment on their 
ideas for the next stage of this work. Members of the Scrutiny 
Committee are also asked to note the letter that the Portfolio Holder for 
Children’s Services sent to Bedford Borough Council. 
 
This work builds on the report that the Committee considered at its last 
meeting of 14 July 2009. 
 
Director’s presentation  
 
At the meeting the Director will make a presentation to provide some 
thoughts to stimulate comment on this report.  It is expected that the 
Portfolio Holders, if they are able to be present, will make an introduction 
to this item. 
 
Where there are areas where the Committee is likely to want to 
offer advice this will be covered in the Director’s presentation and 
are highlighted in bold in this report.  It is however, entirely for the 
Committee to comment on any aspect. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Edwina Grant (0300 300 4229) 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Council 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. 
 
 
 
 

Members of the Scrutiny Committee are invited to comment on their ideas 
for the next stage of this work.  This will be taken as advice to the Portfolio 
Holders for Children’s Services and Culture and Skills (the latter in his role 
of overseeing capital across the Directorate) and will inform the report to 
Executive on the next steps planned for 15 September 2009. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 53



 
2. 

 
Members are asked to note the letter that was sent to Bedford Borough by 
the Portfolio Holder. 

 
 
Background to the work so far 
 
1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As the Committee was previously informed, the Government has promoted 
BSF as a Government funded 15 year programme of investment in 
secondary schools (including middle schools in Central Bedfordshire).  This 
will involve building new schools and refurbishment and aims to transform 
learning by: 
 

• enhancing school diversity and parental choice; 
• increasing the use of schools by the community; 
• seizing new technologies; 
• developing more creative approaches to learning; 
• producing places for learning that are exciting, flexible, healthy, 

safe, secure and environmentally sustainable. 
 

2. Levels of deprivation and levels of underachievement are used by 
Partnerships for Schools (a non departmental organisation). Using this 
prioritisation matrix, the prioritised area would be Dunstable and Houghton 
Regis.  Please note that underachievement is calculated as a significant 
factor in these calculations which are done by Partnerships for Schools and 
therefore it may be that some areas with lower levels of deprivation may be 
prioritised higher in the order than areas of higher deprivation.  This would 
be followed by Leighton Linslade, Sandy and Biggleswade, and then rural 
mid-Bedfordshire. 
 

3. The Central Bedfordshire Shadow Executive agreed on 17 March 2009 that 
preparatory work should be undertaken for the possible inclusion in this 
programme.  It is not yet clear when Central Bedfordshire will enter the 
programme, but there needs to be a ‘readiness to deliver’.  Also, there 
needs to be a planned approach to improving teaching and learning in the 
authority.  There is scope for improvement in the outcomes of young 
people in some areas and some schools.  Bidding for BSF funding provides 
a unique opportunity.  The programme provides an important context for 
the new Council to develop its educational vision with its partners and to 
deliver its aspirations for children and communities.  The programme acts 
as a catalyst for ensuring approaches to learning are innovative and 
modern.  At its heart is personalised learning to ensure all pupils reach their 
potential. 
 

4. This programme is not just about schools, it is about schools in their 
communities.  All partners will need to consider carefully what learning for 
the wider community will mean and how increased community use of 
schools for childcare, adult learning and family support can be facilitated. 
School facilities will be open to the whole community, taking into account 
local needs and priorities.  Schools must be at the heart of the community. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 54



5. Developing special needs provision, including proposals for special 
schools, could be brought forward as part of this programme.  Similarly, 
there must be support for mainstream schools, ensuring they are more 
inclusive.  Co-location with mainstream schools and special schools will be 
looked at, as will the local provision of special needs.  The needs of all 
groups of pupils must be met, especially vulnerable groups. There is a 
report elsewhere on the Committee’s agenda regarding first steps in the 
East of the Authority. 
 

6. The Council is required to set out a Strategy for Change document against 
a national template.  This sets out the educational vision and the plans 
seek to reflect the wider Every Child Matters agenda.  The final Strategy for 
Change document will be prepared at the end of 2009, or early 2010.  
Discussions about the strategy have been taking place, without addressing 
the question of school reorganisation. 
 

7. The Strategy for Change should illustrate how schools across the local 
area will provide more choice for parents and carers.  The Strategy should 
be based around a firm commitment to raise standards, especially in the 
lowest attaining schools. It also needs to consider curriculum changes and 
how these can best be accommodated within school organisation so that 
schools can deliver vibrant and relevant curricula.  These include 14-19 
curriculum reform including the introduction of diplomas, the new Key 
Stage 3 curriculum, the Rose Report on a new primary curriculum and the 
recent introduction of the Early Years Foundation Stage.   
 

8. The Strategy needs to examine how the Local Authority can best work with 
Trusts in Central Bedfordshire, and the impact of the Trusts upon school 
effectiveness.  Similarly, the impact of current and future federations should 
be analysed, and how these may work to improve school effectiveness.   
 

9. On 19 March, the Shadow Executive agreed a way forward for developing 
the Council’s programme to transform teaching and learning in Central 
Bedfordshire.  The Learning Transformation Board has been established 
and has moved forwards with its work and at its last meeting this 
Committee received in an appendix to a report a copy of the 19 March 
report which is also listed in background papers.  
 

10. At its last meeting this Committee reviewed the progress of the Learning 
Transformation Board which has been established to oversee the Building 
Schools for the Future Programme and to gather the information necessary 
to help elected members make informed decisions.  The Board is made up 
of elected members, chairs of headteachers’ groups and officers.  It is not a 
decision making Board, it is an advisory Board. It is possible that 
attendance at this Board will be refreshed in the Executive report in 
September.  This will be discussed at the next full meeting of the Learning 
Transformation Board on 7 September 2009 to ascertain the views of 
attendees.  There are various possibilities as to the way forward and the 
Director will comment on this in her presentation. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 55



11. At its last meeting the Committee was updated on the work streams which 
have been identified in preparation for developing the Strategy for Change 
and to demonstrate a readiness for BSF.  The workstreams are: 
 

• Transforming Teaching and Learning; 
• Governance and Management; 
• Finance and Legal; 
• Property, Regeneration and Sustainability; 
• Information and Analysis for Decision Making; 
• Partnerships, Sport and Culture; 
• Communications; 
• Information and Learning Technology; 
• Every Child Matters and Extended Schools; and, 
• Special Educational Needs and Inclusion. 

 
At the time of writing this report a workshop has been planned at officer 
level to see if the work streams can now be conflated to become more 
targeted and focussed.   The outcome of this workshop will be considered 
by the Learning Transformation Board at its first full meeting in the autumn 
term, currently planned for 7 September 2009.  The Director will 
comment on this in her presentation. 

 
12. At its last meeting, the Committee was advised that an important aspect of 

the work on transforming teaching and learning is to gather views and 
information about a range of areas for future development.  This includes 
the way school places are organised; how innovative curricula can be 
developed; how transition is effectively managed and how schools can 
improve the quality of life for all of the people in our communities.  All the 
five consultation meetings have now taken place and the seconded head 
teacher is writing up the report during the summer holiday period.  This will 
be presented to the Learning Transformation Board at its first meeting in 
September and will be available for the Executive to have as an Appendix 
in the September report. At the time of writing this, as it was 
commissioned for September, it is not ready; see comments in 
section 13 below. 
 

13. These meetings which were arranged for head teachers and chairs of 
governors to discuss principles which should be taken into account in 
making decisions and to start to explore the wide range of options and 
issues in relation to possible future arrangements for schools in Central 
Bedfordshire were well attended and well received. 
 
As the Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services attended many of the 
meetings and the Portfolio Holder for Culture and Skills was also present at 
some, it is possible for this Committee to discuss some of the issues that 
came out of the meetings and the Director will comment on this during 
her presentation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 56



Response to Bedford Borough 
 
14. At the last meeting this Committee advised the Portfolio Holder on their 

views to inform her response to the Bedford Borough consultation.  A copy 
of the letter that the Portfolio Holder sent is attached as Appendix A. 
 

Communication with Schools and Governors 
 
15. A copy of the letter to Bedford Borough was sent to all Schools and Chairs 

of Governors where information lists allowed. 
 
Any letters or emails from schools about aspects of this work are being 
acknowledged and filed. 
 

Early work on the impact assessment on any change made by Bedford Borough 
 
16. 
 

The Committee are advised that impact work is on-going and the current 
impact assessment is attached at Appendix B. 
 

Developing thoughts on the strategy for change 
 
17. The strategy for change has to be written within a tight timescale as set out 

below. 
 
September 2009 Produce early thoughts for Strategy for Change Part 2 

including detail and delivery, estates strategy.  Gain 
Executive approval and submit to DCSF for approval 
(this timescale may slip but it is important that it is 
completed by the end of the year and Shadow 
Executive in March agreed that the report should be at 
the September Executive). 

 
December 2009 Executive approval of Outline Business Case.  Central 

Bedfordshire Council submitted to DCSF for approval.  
Formal approval to issue OJEU notice (Official Journal 
of European Union). 

 
February 2010 Prepare procurement documentation and evaluation 

plan.  Submit OJEU notice to Board.  Partnerships for 
Schools (PFS) approves OJEU and procurement 
documents. 

 
June 2010 Bidders Day. Interview long list of Bidders. Project 

Board to agree short list. 
 
May 2011 Issue Invitation to Competitive Dialogue (ITCD). 

Evaluate bids. Issue Invitation to submit final bids 
(ITSFB). 

 
June 2011 Final Evaluation report to Project Board.  Appoint 

preferred partner. Financial close 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 57



September 2012 Opening of first improved/rebuilt school. 
 
The Committee may wish to question the Director on the purpose of 
the strategy for change. 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities:  Achieving BSF funding and transforming teaching and learning 
would support the Central Bedfordshire Strategic Plan (2009-11) particularly in 
educating, protecting and providing opportunities for children and young people. 
 
Financial:  Authorities that have already participated in the programme have had to set 
aside considerable resources. At a meeting of the County Council Executive in January 
2007 £1.8 million was set aside to fund the implementation plan for Bedfordshire. This 
allocation has been disaggregated to Bedford Borough Council, as this was needed for 
their on-going base budget provision for projects already agreed. There may be a need 
for a future report on budget provision should intensive work be needed in 2009/10 on 
BSF preparation. In the meantime current preparatory work is being funded from 
existing resources. 
 
Legal:  A project of this nature has significant and wide-ranging legal implications for 
the Council associated with Governance and the establishment of a Local Education 
Partnership. Once the project is up and running there could be complex contractual 
arrangements involving £200 - £300 millions worth of building projects.  Partnership for 
Schools has produced standard contractual documentation, which the Council will be 
expected to adopt if it proceeds with the BSF option. 
 
Risk Management:  Initial risks have been identified and mitigation developed.  If 
Central Bedfordshire was successful in achieving BSF funding then mitigation of risk 
would be a key part of the project. 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions):  In the event of specific work stream impacting on 
staff, appropriate consultations will be undertaken with trade unions and professional 
associations 
 
Equalities/Human Rights:  None. 
 
Community Safety:  Improvements in the quality of school buildings and the 
opportunities for extended services will enhance the opportunities for wider community 
development and improved community safety. 

 
Sustainability:  To develop new school buildings which are well designed and 
maintained during their lifetime and provide optimum efficiency and effectiveness in 
relation to their use by schools and the wider community. 
 
Appendices: 
Appendix A – Portfolio Holder’s response to Bedford Borough Consultation 
Appendix B – Current Impact Assessment on any change made by Bedford Borough 
 
Background papers: –  
Report to the Shadow Executive ‘Building Schools for the Future’ (March 2009) 
Report to Scrutiny Committee 14 July 2009 – Transforming Teaching and Learning 

Agenda Item 11
Page 58



 
Appendix A 

 
Tel: 01462 611498 

Your ref:  

Our ref: AL/ae 

Ms Joan Wheeler 
BSF Projects Manager 
Children’s Services, Schools & Families  
Bedford Borough Council 
Borough Hall 
Bedford MK42 9AP 

Date: 14th July 2009 

 
Dear Ms Wheeler 
 
Re: Bedford Schools for the Future – Consultation Response 
 
I write to you as Portfolio Holder for Children’s Services with regard to Central 
Bedfordshire’s response to Bedford Borough’s School Organisation Review. 
 
Whilst I have not used the form provided as your consultation document, I have 
responded to the questions.  However, before addressing the questions, I would like 
to make general observations. 
 
My first comment is that many of the Central Bedfordshire residents will have their 
children in schools on the Borough Boundary and Borough residents will have their 
children in Central Bedfordshire schools.  I am concerned that these communities 
need to be given particular consideration.  I will be keeping an on-going 
communication with you in representing the needs of these constituents as I know 
Edwina Grant will be talking to Chris Hilliard at officer level. 
 
My second point is regarding the implementation of any decision.  Should the 
responses to your consultation be in favour of your proposal this will take some time 
to implement.  Reassurance will need to be given by yourselves to new parents with 
very young children and all parents with children already in schools about the 
continuity of high quality education and proper transition between existing school 
phases so that confidence in the system is maintained throughout any change. 
 
On the questions that are particularly relevant for me to address, I have commented 
below. 
 
 
 
 
 
How do you think that schools in Bedford Borough should be organised?  
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 59



We think that schools should be organised in a way that provides good outcomes for 
children and takes account of the need to personalise the education for every child.  I 
firmly believe that “one glove does not fit all hands”. It is important that the provision 
is responsive to the context of the area the school serves and the needs of the 
community. 
 
Please give any comments you have about the proposed timing of any change 
 
With respect of the timing, I think that this consultation has happened very quickly 
after Bedford Borough Council was established as a new Unitary Authority.  This 
speed is of concern in that we have had limited time to engage with you in 
preparation for the change. 
 
Please give any comments on the individual proposals for any of the schools  
 
On comments about individual proposals for schools, I do not propose to comment 
on schools within your area. However, I would need to make strong representation as 
we go forward should there be any negative impact on the continuity of learning for 
pupils in Central Bedfordshire schools.  
 
I have copied this letter to all of our Central Bedfordshire schools so that they are 
aware of my response.  I will continue to keep in close contact with our own schools 
and our parents to make representations as appropriate as we go forward. 
 
Finally, to further my aim to represent our constituents, I ask for a meeting with your 
Lead Member for Children’s Services, along with each authority’s Director of 
Children’s Services so that we can discuss issues.  If necessary, after this meeting, 
we may need to have a further meeting to include the two Leaders and Chief 
Executives of the Councils. It is disappointing that the consultation closes one week 
after schools have themselves moved into the holiday period. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
Councillor Mrs Anita Lewis 
Portfolio Holder – Children’s Services 

Agenda Item 11
Page 60



 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Bedford School Organisation review 
 

Potential Impact on Central Bedfordshire Schools 
 

1. Background 
 
1.1 Bedford Borough are consulting on a proposal to re-organise the 

structure of educational provision across the Borough to move from a 3 
tier system of schools based on a 5-9, 9-13,13-18 system of Lower, 
Middle and Upper schools respectively to a two tier system based on 5-
11 Primary and 11-16/18 Secondary.  

 
1.2 It is proposed that the changes are effected in two stages, commencing 

with Stage 1 in September 2013 and Stage 2 in September 2014. 
However each of the stages will be phased over a two year period to 
give a gradual transition from one system to the other; hence Stage 1 
will be completed in September 2014 and Stage 2 in September 2015.  

 
1.3 Therefore, by 2015 all Bedford Borough Schools will have become 

either Primary or Secondary schools based on the enlargement of the 
current Lower schools to become Primary, the lowering of the age 
range of the Upper Schools to become Secondary and the closure of 
the Middle schools. (the only exception to this is at Lincroft Middle 
which would become an 11-16 Secondary feeding into Sharnbrook at 
16+). 

 
1.4 The net effect of this would be a proposed reduction of 16 schools in 

total from 74 to 60 but with an increase of 3 Forms of Entry at 
Secondary level from 65 FE to 68 FE and an increase of about 6 FE at 
Primary level from 68.5 FE to 74.4. 

 
Detail of the impact on Central Bedfordshire Schools 
 
2.1 Further discussion on the detail of the Impact on Central Bedfordshire 

Schools will be part of the presentation by the Director at the meeting 
regarding this report. 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 
C

en
tr

al
 B

ed
fo

rd
sh

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

F
o

rw
ar

d
 P

la
n

 o
f 

K
ey

 D
ec

is
io

n
s 

1 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9 
to

 3
1 

Ju
ly

 2
01

0 
  

1)
 
D
ur
in
g 
th
e 
pe
rio
d 
fr
om

 1
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
00

9 
to

 3
1 

Ju
ly

 2
01

0,
 C
en
tr
al
 B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
 C
ou
nc
il 
pl
an
s 
to
 m
ak
e 
ke
y 
de
ci
si
on
s 
on
 t
he
 is
su
es
 s
et
 o
ut
 

be
lo
w
.  
“K
ey
 d
ec
is
io
ns
” 
re
la
te
 to
 th
os
e 
de
ci
si
on
s 
of
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
w
hi
ch
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
: 

 
 

- 
to
 r
es
ul
t 
in
 t
he
 in
cu
rr
in
g 
of
 e
xp
en
di
tu
re
 w
hi
ch
 is
, 
or
 t
he
 m
ak
in
g 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 w
hi
ch
 a
re
, 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 (
na
m
el
y 
£2
00
,0
00
 o
r 
ab
ov
e 
pe
r 
an
nu
m
) 

ha
vi
ng
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 th
e 
bu
dg
et
 fo
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
or
 fu
nc
tio
n 
to
 w
hi
ch
 th
e 
de
ci
si
on
 r
el
at
es
; o
r 

 
 

- 
to
 b
e 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 in
 te
rm
s 
of
 th
ei
r 
ef
fe
ct
s 
on
 c
om

m
un
iti
es
 li
vi
ng
 o
r 
w
or
ki
ng
 in
 a
n 
ar
ea
 c
om

pr
is
in
g 
on
e 
or
 m
or
e 
w
ar
ds
 in
 th
e 
ar
ea
 o
f C
en
tr
al
 

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
. 

 
2)
 
T
he
 F
or
w
ar
d 
P
la
n 
is
 a
 g
en
er
al
 g
ui
de
 t
o 
th
e 
ke
y 
de
ci
si
on
s 
to
 b
e 
de
te
rm
in
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
an
d 
w
ill
 b
e 
up
da
te
d 
on
 a
 m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
. 
 K
ey
 

de
ci
si
on
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
ta
ke
n 
by
 th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
as
 a
 w
ho
le
.  
T
he
 M
em

be
rs
 o
f t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
ar
e:
 

 
 

M
em

be
r 

P
or
tfo
lio
 

 
 

 
C
llr
 M
rs
 T
ric
ia
 T
ur
ne
r 
M
B
E
 

C
ha
irm

an
 o
f t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
an
d 
Le
ad
er
 o
f t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

 
 

C
llr
 R
ic
ha
rd
 S
ta
y 

V
ic
e-
C
ha
irm

an
 o
f 
th
e 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
an
d 
D
ep
ut
y 
Le
ad
er
 o
f 
th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 

B
us
in
es
s 
T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

 

 
C
llr
 R
ita
 D
rin
kw
at
er
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
H
ou
si
ng
 

 
 

C
llr
 C
ar
ol
e 
H
eg
le
y 

P
or
tfo
lio
 
H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
S
oc
ia
l 
C
ar
e 

an
d 

H
ea
lth
 
&
 
P
ro
tfo
lio
 
C
ha
m
pi
on
 
fo
r 
B
us
in
es
s 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

 

 
C
llr
 M
au
ric
e 
Jo
ne
s 
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
C
or
po
ra
te
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 
 

C
llr
 A
ni
ta
 L
ew
is
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

 
 

C
llr
 S
te
ve
 M
al
e 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
C
ul
tu
re
 a
nd
 S
ki
lls
 &
 P
or
tfo
lio
 C
ha
m
pi
on
 fo
r 
B
us
in
es
s 
T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

 
 

C
llr
 K
en
 M
at
th
ew
s 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
E
co
no
m
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
nd
 R
eg
en
er
at
io
n 

 
 

C
llr
 D
av
id
 M
cV
ic
ar
 

P
or
tfo
lio
 H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
S
af
er
 a
nd
 S
tr
on
ge
r 
C
om

m
un
iti
es
 

 
 

C
llr
 T
om

 N
ic
ol
s 

P
or
tfo
lio
 
H
ol
de
r 
fo
r 
S
us
ta
in
ab
le
 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 
&
 
P
or
tfo
lio
 
C
ha
m
pi
on
 
fo
r 
B
us
in
es
s 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm
at
io
n 

 

  

Agenda Item 12
Page 63



 3)
 
T
ho
se
 i
te
m
s 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
fo
r 
de
ci
si
on
 m
or
e 
th
an
 o
ne
 m
on
th
 i
n 
ad
va
nc
e 
m
ay
 c
ha
ng
e 
in
 f
or
th
co
m
in
g 
P
la
ns
. 
 E
ac
h 
ne
w
 P
la
n 
su
pe
rs
ed
es
 t
he
 

pr
ev
io
us
 P
la
n.
  
A
ny
 p
er
so
n 
w
ho
 w
is
he
s 
to
 m
ak
e 
re
pr
es
en
ta
tio
ns
 to
 t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
ab
ou
t 
th
e 
m
at
te
r 
in
 r
es
pe
ct
 o
f 
w
hi
ch
 t
he
 d
ec
is
io
n 
is
 t
o 
be
 

m
ad
e 
sh
ou
ld
 d
o 
so
 to
 th
e 
of
fic
er
 w
ho
se
 te
le
ph
on
e 
nu
m
be
r 
an
d 
e-
m
ai
l a
dd
re
ss
 a
re
 s
ho
w
n 
in
 th
e 
F
or
w
ar
d 
P
la
n.
  A
ny
 c
or
re
sp
on
de
nc
e 
sh
ou
ld
 

be
 s
en
t 
to
 t
he
 c
on
ta
ct
 o
ffi
ce
r 
at
 t
he
 r
el
ev
an
t a
dd
re
ss
 a
s 
sh
ow
n 
be
lo
w
. 
 G
en
er
al
 q
ue
st
io
ns
 a
bo
ut
 t
he
 P
la
n 
su
ch
 a
s 
sp
ec
ifi
c 
da
te
s,
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 

ad
dr
es
se
d 
to
 th
e 
H
ea
d 
of
 D
em

oc
ra
tic
 S
er
vi
ce
s,
 P
rio
ry
 H
ou
se
, M

on
ks
 W
al
k,
 C
hi
ck
sa
nd
s,
 S
he
ffo
rd
 S
G
17
 5
T
Q
. 

 
4)
 
T
he
 a
ge
nd
as
 fo
r 
m
ee
tin
gs
 o
f t
he
 E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
pu
bl
is
he
d 
as
 fo
llo
w
s:
 

 
 

M
ee
tin
g 
D
at
e 

 
P
ub
lic
at
io
n 
of
 A
ge
nd
a 
 

 
12
 M
ay
 2
00
9 
  

01
 M
ay
 2
00
9 
 

 
 

23
 J
un
e 
20
09
 

15
 J
un
e 
20
09
  

 
 

21
 J
ul
y 
20
09
  

13
 J
ul
y 
20
09
  

 
 

18
 A
ug
us
t 2
00
9 
  

10
 A
ug
us
t 2
00
9 
 

 
 

15
 S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
 

7 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09
  

 
 

13
 O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 
  

5 
O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 
 

 
 

10
 N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09
 

2 
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09
  

 
 

8 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
09
 

30
 N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09
  

 
 

12
 J
an
ua
ry
 2
01
0 

4 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20
10
 

 
 

9 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
10
 

1 
F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
10
 

 
 

9 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 
 

1 
M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

 
 

6 
A
pr
il 
20
10
 

25
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 64



Ce
nt
ra
l B

ed
fo
rd
sh

ire
 C
ou

nc
il 

 
Fo

rw
ar
d 
Pl
an

 o
f K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
ns

 fo
r t
he

 p
er
io
d 
1 
Au

gu
st
 2
00
9 
to
 3
1 
Ju

ly
 2
01
0 

 
Ke

y 
De

ci
si
on

s 
Da

te
 o
f P

ub
lic
at
io
n:
 1
5 
Ju

ly
 2
00

9 
 

 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

1.
 

St
re

et
 L

ig
ht

in
g 

& 
Br

id
ge

 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

tra
te

gi
es

 - 
 

Th
is 

pa
pe

r i
s 

to
 g

ai
n 

a 
st

ee
r f

ro
m

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
on

 
ho

w 
be

st
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

an
 

ag
ei

ng
 s

tre
et

 lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
an

d 
to

 a
dv

ise
 M

em
be

rs
 o

n 
ho

w 
es

se
nt

ia
l m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

wo
rk

 w
ill 

be
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t t
o 

en
su

re
 s

af
e 

us
ag

e 
of

 th
e 

Co
un

cil
’s 

br
id

ge
 s

tru
ct

ur
es

. 
   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

Po
lic

e 
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 G

ro
up

s 
 

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

To
m

 N
ico

ls 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

02
/0

8/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Ba

sil
 J

ac
ks

on
, A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

ba
sil

.ja
ck

so
n@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

01
23

4 
22

84
77

 
   

2.
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
cq

ui
sit

io
ns

 a
nd

 
Di

sp
os

al
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
-  

St
an

di
ng

 it
em

 fo
r k

ey
 

de
cis

io
ns

 a
nd

 q
ua

rte
rly

 
ba

sis
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
f a

ll p
ro

pe
rty

 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

  
   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

Ite
m

s 
wi

ll h
av

e 
be

en
 re

vie
we

d 
an

d 
as

se
ss

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
CB

C 
Ca

pi
ta

l 
As

se
ts

 M
an

ag
em

en
t G

ro
up

 
(C

AM
G

). 
 

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
au

ric
e 

R 
Jo

ne
s 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
22

/0
7/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

k 
Ba

ss
et

t, 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t A

dv
iso

r -
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

m
ar

k.
ba

ss
et

t@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

 
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

27
68

89
 / 

07
93

9 
03

81
05

 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 65



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

3.
 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 

Ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 - 
 

To
 re

vie
w 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

 fo
r 

CB
C 

of
fic

e 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n.
  

   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m

  
CA

M
G

  
Al

l S
er

vic
e 

Ar
ea

s 
 

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
au

ric
e 

R 
Jo

ne
s 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
22

/0
7/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

k 
Ba

ss
et

t, 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t A

dv
iso

r -
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

m
ar

k.
ba

ss
et

t@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

27
68

89
 / 

07
93

9 
03

80
15

 
   

4.
 

Al
bi

on
 A

rc
ha

eo
lo

gy
 - 

 
Th

at
 a

ll h
ist

or
ic 

en
vir

on
m

en
t w

or
k 

of
 A

lb
io

n 
Ar

ch
ae

ol
og

y 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ca
rri

ed
 o

ut
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

wi
th

 th
e 

Co
de

 o
f C

on
du

ct
 

an
d 

ot
he

r b
y-

la
ws

 o
f t

he
 

In
st

itu
te

 o
f A

rc
ha

eo
lo

gi
st

s 
(If

A)
. R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 th

at
 A

lb
io

n 
ca

n 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

un
de

r 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
  

   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

   

IfA
 C

od
e 

of
 C

on
du

ct
 If

A 
By

-
La

w 
(R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 fo

r t
he

 
Re

gi
st

ra
tio

n 
of

 O
rg

an
isa

tio
n)

 
 

Cl
lr 

To
m

 N
ico

ls 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

22
/0

7/
09

 to
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

G
ar

y 
 W

or
th

, A
ss

ist
an

t D
ire

ct
or

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
ga

ry
.w

or
th

@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
03

00
 3

00
 5

17
7 

   

5.
 

Up
da

te
 o

f D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 fo

r 
Ce

nt
ra

l B
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

 - 
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
up

da
te

d 
De

sig
n 

G
ui

de
.  

   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

To
m

 N
ico

ls 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

22
/0

7/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Fi

on
a 

W
eb

b,
 T

ea
m

 L
ea

de
r, 

Co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

De
sig

n 
fio

na
.w

eb
b@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
40

5 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 66



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

6.
 

Re
vie

w 
of

 H
ist

or
ic 

Bu
ild

in
g 

G
ra

nt
 A

id
 S

ch
em

e 
an

d 
Li

st
ed

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 A

t R
isk

 - 
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
Sc

he
m

e.
  

   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

   

Bu
ild

in
gs

 a
t R

isk
 S

ur
ve

y 
(N

or
th

 A
re

a)
 2

00
8 

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
 

at
 R

isk
 S

ur
ve

y 
(S

ou
th

 A
re

a)
 

20
05

 
 

Cl
lr 

To
m

 N
ico

ls 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

22
/0

7/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Ro

bi
n 

Uf
f, 

Pr
in

cip
al

 P
la

nn
in

g 
O

ffi
ce

r 
ro

bi
n.

uf
f@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

01
46

2 
61

13
39

 
   

7.
 

Ru
sh

m
er

e 
Pa

rk
 - 

ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
of

 la
nd

 in
 

pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
G

re
en

sa
nd

 T
ru

st
 - 

 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 to

 th
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t o

f e
xt

er
na

l 
fu

nd
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

(re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

ca
pi

ta
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e)

 to
 th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f l
an

d 
fo

r o
pe

n 
ac

ce
ss

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f n

ew
 g

re
en

 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r t

he
 

G
ro

wt
h 

Ag
en

da
.  

   

18
 A

ug
us

t 2
00

9 
 

O
uz

el
 V

al
le

y 
Pa

rk
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 (a

 
co

ns
or

tiu
m

 o
f r

ep
re

se
nt

at
ive

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
Le

ig
ht

on
 L

in
sla

de
 T

ow
n 

Co
uc

ni
l, 

Th
e 

G
re

en
sa

nd
 T

ru
st

, 
Br

itis
h 

W
at

er
wa

ys
, S

US
TR

AN
S,

 
th

e 
En

vir
on

m
en

t A
ge

nc
y,

 
Bu

ck
in

gh
am

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

Co
un

cil
 

an
d 

Co
un

cil
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 fr

om
 P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

Cu
ltu

re
.) 

 
Co

un
cil

lo
rs

 P
et

er
 R

aw
cli

ffe
, P

et
er

 
Sn

el
lin

g,
 A

la
n 

Sh
ad

bo
lt 

an
d 

Br
ia

n 
Sp

ur
r (

Ch
ai

rm
an

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
ni

cl)
 

wh
o 

at
te

nd
ed

 a
 s

ite
 m

ee
tin

g 
wi

th
 

th
e 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 H
ol

de
r a

nd
 th

e 
G

re
en

sa
nd

 T
ru

st
 o

n 
25

 J
un

e 
20

09
.  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

02
/0

8/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Ro

y 
W

at
er

fie
ld

, A
ss

ist
an

t D
ire

ct
or

 L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 
Cu

ltu
re

, L
ib

ra
rie

s,
 A

du
lt 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

ro
y.

wa
te

rfi
el

d@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
03

00
 3

00
 4

23
9 

   

Agenda Item 12
Page 67



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

8.
 

Ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

's 
Pl

an
 - 

 
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
Ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
's 

Pl
an

.  
   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

, m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 

pu
bl

ic 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

21
/0

8/
09

0t
o 

Co
nt

ac
t O

ffi
ce

r: 
Sy

lvi
a 

G
ib

so
n,

 In
te

rim
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
, P

ol
icy

, 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
m

iss
io

ni
ng

 
sy

lvi
a.

gi
bs

on
@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 5
52

2 
   

9.
 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 - 

 
To

 a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 
fo

r C
en

tra
l B

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
 

Co
un

cil
. 

   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

Po
rtf

ol
io

 H
ol

de
r (

Bu
sin

es
s 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n)

 
LS

P 
Pa

rtn
er

s 
  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Ri
ch

ar
d 

St
ay

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

21
/0

8/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Ia

n 
Po

rte
r, 

As
sis

ta
nt

 D
ire

ct
or

 S
er

vic
e 

Po
lic

y,
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s 

& 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ia

n.
po

rte
r@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

01
23

4 
27

60
67

 
   

10
. 

Ce
nt

ra
l B

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
 

Ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

's 
Pl

an
 2

00
9 

- 2
01

0 
-  Th

is 
is 

th
e 

fir
st

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
’s 

Pl
an

.  
Th

er
ea

fte
r i

t w
ill 

be
 

re
fre

sh
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

. 
   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

Co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ha
s 

al
re

ad
y 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

wi
th

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
.  

Fu
rth

er
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

wi
ll t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
in

 M
ay

, 
Ju

ne
 a

nd
 J

ul
y 

th
ou

gh
 a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

wo
rk

sh
op

s,
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pu
bl

ish
ed

 o
n 

ou
r 

we
bs

ite
 a

nd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ith
 k

ey
 

pa
rtn

er
s.

  
  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

21
/0

8/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Sy

lvi
a 

G
ib

so
n,

 In
te

rim
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
, P

ol
icy

, 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
m

iss
io

ni
ng

 
sy

lvi
a.

gi
bs

on
@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

08
45

 8
49

 6
09

2 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 68



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

11
. 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
es

 
St

ra
te

gy
 - 

 
To

 a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

St
ra

te
gy

. 
   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Ri
ch

ar
d 

St
ay

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

21
/0

8/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Cl

ive
 J

on
es

, A
ss

ist
an

t D
ire

ct
or

 B
us

in
es

s 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
& 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
es

 
cli

ve
.jo

ne
s@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

01
46

2 
61

11
68

 
   

12
. 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

an
d 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
-  

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
Po

lic
y 

an
d 

Fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

Li
ce

ns
in

g 
Tr

ad
e 

 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 H

ol
de

r (
Sa

fe
r a

nd
 

St
ro

ng
er

 C
om

m
un

itie
s)

  
Ch

ai
rm

an
 a

nd
 V

ice
-C

ha
irm

an
 o

f 
th

e 
Li

ce
ns

in
g 

Co
m

m
itt

ee
  

Th
re

e 
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

co
m

m
en

cin
g 

1 
Ap

ril
 2

00
9,

 m
ee

tin
gs

, p
ub

lic
at

io
n 

on
 w

eb
sit

e 
an

d 
in

 o
th

er
 m

ed
ia

  
  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Da
vid

 M
cV

ica
r 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
21

/0
8/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

Su
sa

n 
Ch

ild
er

ho
us

e,
 H

ea
d 

of
 P

ub
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

(N
or

th
) 

su
sa

n.
ch

ild
er

ho
us

e@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

 
Te

l: 
01

46
2 

61
13

94
 

   

13
. 

Pr
op

er
ty

 S
er

vic
es

 R
ev

ie
w 

-  
To

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r r

ev
ie

wi
ng

 fu
tu

re
 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

se
rv

ice
s 

fo
r C

BC
.  

   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

CA
M

G
  

Al
l S

er
vic

e 
Ar

ea
s 

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
au

ric
e 

R 
Jo

ne
s 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
19

/0
8/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

k 
Ba

ss
et

t, 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t A

dv
iso

r -
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

m
ar

k.
ba

ss
et

t@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

27
68

89
 / 

07
93

9 
03

81
05

 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 69



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

14
. 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t P
ro

vis
io

n 
fo

r 
Ch

ild
re

n 
wi

th
 A

ut
ist

ic 
Sp

ec
tru

m
 D

iso
rd

er
s 

at
 

Ho
lm

em
ea

d 
M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

, B
ig

gl
es

wa
de

 - 
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 
se

t u
p 

a 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

Pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

wi
th

 
Au

tis
tic

 S
pe

ct
ru

m
 

Di
so

rd
er

s 
at

 H
om

em
ea

d 
M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

, 
Bi

gg
le

sw
ad

e.
  

   

15
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

09
 

 

St
at

ut
or

y 
Co

ns
ul

te
es

 - 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 in
 

Ap
ril

/M
ay

 2
00

9 
an

d 
St

at
ut

or
y 

No
tic

es
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9.
  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

21
/0

8/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
He

le
n 

Re
dd

in
g,

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
EN

 a
nd

 In
clu

sio
n 

he
le

n.
re

dd
in

g@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

22
81

48
 

   

15
. 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Tr
an

sf
or

m
at

io
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 - 
 

To
 a

pp
ro

ve
 th

e 
St

ra
te

gy
. 

   

13
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Ri
ch

ar
d 

St
ay

 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

22
/0

9/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Cl

ive
 J

on
es

, A
ss

ist
an

t D
ire

ct
or

 B
us

in
es

s 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
& 

Cu
st

om
er

 S
er

vic
es

 
cli

ve
.jo

ne
s@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

01
46

2 
61

11
68

 
   

16
. 

Co
m

m
iss

io
ni

ng
 P

ol
icy

 - 
 

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
 

   

13
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

r a
nd

 th
e 

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
Tr

us
t  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

22
/0

9/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Sy

lvi
a 

G
ib

so
n,

 In
te

rim
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
, P

ol
icy

, 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
m

iss
io

ni
ng

 
sy

lvi
a.

gi
bs

on
@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 5
52

2 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 70



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

17
. 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

St
ra

te
gy

 U
pd

at
e 

-  
To

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 
of

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
.  

   

13
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

00
9 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
au

ric
e 

R 
Jo

ne
s 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
13

/1
0/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

k 
Ba

ss
et

t, 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t A

dv
iso

r -
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

m
ar

k.
ba

ss
et

t@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

27
68

89
 / 

07
93

9 
03

81
05

 
   

18
. 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
cq

ui
sit

io
ns

 a
nd

 
Di

sp
os

al
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
-  

St
an

di
ng

 it
em

 fo
r k

ey
 

de
cis

io
ns

 a
nd

 q
ua

rte
rly

 
ba

sis
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
f a

ll p
ro

pe
rty

 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

. 
   

10
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9  

 
Ite

m
s 

wi
ll h

av
e 

be
en

 re
vie

we
d 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

CB
C 

Ca
pi

ta
l 

As
se

ts
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 

(C
AM

G
). 

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
au

ric
e 

R 
Jo

ne
s 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
14

/1
0/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

k 
Ba

ss
et

t, 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t A

dv
iso

r -
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

m
ar

k.
ba

ss
et

t@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

27
68

89
 / 

07
93

9 
03

81
05

 
   

19
. 

Ha
rm

on
isa

tio
n 

of
 W

as
te

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t S
er

vic
es

 - 
 

To
 p

ro
vid

e 
M

em
be

rs
 w

ith
 

th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

ty
 to

 c
om

m
en

t 
on

 s
ug

ge
st

ed
 s

er
vic

e 
ch

an
ge

s.
  

   

10
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9  

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Da
vid

 M
cV

ica
r 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
14

/1
0/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

St
ev

e 
W

hi
tta

ke
r, 

Co
nt

ra
ct

 S
er

vic
es

 M
an

ag
er

 
st

ev
e.

wh
itt

ak
er

@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
03

00
 3

00
 4

34
4 

   

Agenda Item 12
Page 71



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

20
. 

Lo
rd

 L
am

in
g 

Ac
tio

n 
Pl

an
 - 

 
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
pl

an
.  

   

10
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

00
9 

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
Bo

ar
d 

 
  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

14
/1

0/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

21
. 

El
ig

ib
ilit

y 
fo

r p
ay

m
en

ts
 

po
lic

y 
-  

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
 

   

8 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

00
9 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/1

1/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

22
. 

Ra
isi

ng
 A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

Po
lic

y 
-  

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
 

   

8 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

00
9 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/1

1/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Pa

tri
ck

 S
he

vli
n,

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
ch

oo
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pa

tri
ck

.s
he

vli
n@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 6
82

1 
   

23
. 

Lu
to

n-
Du

ns
ta

bl
e 

G
ui

de
d 

Bu
sw

ay
 - 

 
To

 re
ce

ive
 th

e 
Te

nd
er

 
Re

tu
rn

s 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

e 
sc

he
m

e.
  

   

8 
De

ce
m

be
r 2

00
9 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

To
m

 N
ico

ls 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/1

1/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Jo

hn
 A

us
tin

, I
nt

er
im

 H
ea

d 
of

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
St

ra
te

gy
 

jo
hn

.a
us

tin
@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

01
23

4 
22

86
87

 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 72



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

24
. 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 

Un
ifo

rm
ed

 P
re

se
nc

e 
fo

r 
Ce

nt
ra

l B
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

 - 
 

To
 c

on
sid

er
 th

e 
op

tio
ns

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r C

en
tra

l 
Be

df
or

ds
hi

re
 to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t o

f a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 

en
vir

on
m

en
ta

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

le
gi

sla
tio

n 
(in

clu
di

ng
 th

e 
En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
Ac

t (
EP

A)
 a

nd
 C

le
an

 
Ne

ig
hb

ou
rh

oo
ds

 a
nd

 
En

vir
on

m
en

t A
ct

 (C
NE

A)
) 

an
d 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
th

e 
ro

le
 th

at
 

a 
un

ifo
rm

ed
 te

am
 h

as
 in

 
th

at
 re

sp
ec

t. 
   

12
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

 
Re

le
va

nt
 P

or
tfo

lio
 H

ol
de

rs
  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Da
vid

 M
cV

ica
r 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
10

/1
2/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

Je
an

et
te

 K
ey

te
, C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

M
an

ag
er

 
je

an
et

te
.k

ey
te

@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
08

45
 8

49
 6

25
2 

   

25
. 

Ch
ild

re
n'

s 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 - 
 

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

.  
   

12
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
Ch

ild
re

n'
s 

Tr
us

t  
  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/1

2/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Pa

tri
ck

 S
he

vli
n,

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
ch

oo
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pa

tri
ck

.s
he

vli
n@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 6
82

1 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 73



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

26
. 

Ea
rly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 

In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
Po

lic
y 

-  
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

 
   

12
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/1

2/
09

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
G

le
n 

De
nh

am
, A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 
Se

rv
ice

s 
0-

19
 

gl
en

.d
en

ha
m

@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
03

00
 3

00
 6

12
5 

   
27

. 
Cu

ltu
ra

l S
tra

te
gy

 - 
 

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y.
  

   

12
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

 
   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

St
ep

he
n 

F 
M

al
e 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
10

/1
2/

09
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

Ro
y 

W
at

er
fie

ld
, A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 L

ei
su

re
 a

nd
 

Cu
ltu

re
, L

ib
ra

rie
s,

 A
du

lt 
an

d 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
ro

y.
wa

te
rfi

el
d@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

42
39

 
   

28
. 

CC
TV

 S
er

vic
e 

O
pt

io
ns

 - 
 

To
 c

on
sid

er
 o

pt
io

ns
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 m
ov

e 
to

 a
 

co
m

m
on

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f a

 C
CT

V 
se

rv
ice

 w
ith

in
 C

en
tra

l 
Be

df
or

ds
hi

re
. 

   

9 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

 
Po

rtf
ol

io
 H

ol
de

r (
Sa

fe
r a

nd
 

St
ro

ng
er

 C
om

m
un

itie
s)

  
Ke

y 
St

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

Da
vid

 M
cV

ica
r 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
15

/0
1/

10
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

Je
an

et
te

 K
ey

te
, C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

M
an

ag
er

 
je

an
et

te
.k

ey
te

@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
08

45
 8

49
 6

25
2 

   

Agenda Item 12
Page 74



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

29
. 

Pr
op

er
ty

 A
cq

ui
sit

io
ns

 a
nd

 
Di

sp
os

al
s 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
-  

St
an

di
ng

 it
em

 fo
r k

ey
 

de
cis

io
ns

 a
nd

 q
ua

rte
rly

 
ba

sis
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
po

rti
ng

 o
f a

ll p
ro

pe
rty

 
tra

ns
ac

tio
ns

.  
   

9 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

01
0 

 
Ite

m
s 

wi
ll h

av
e 

be
en

 re
vie

we
d 

an
d 

as
se

ss
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

CB
C 

Ca
pi

ta
l 

As
se

ts
 M

an
ag

em
en

t G
ro

up
 

(C
AM

G
)  

  

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
au

ric
e 

R 
Jo

ne
s 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 b

y 
13

/0
1/

10
 to

 C
on

ta
ct

 O
ffi

ce
r: 

M
ar

k 
Ba

ss
et

t, 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t A

dv
iso

r -
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

m
ar

k.
ba

ss
et

t@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

  
Te

l: 
01

23
4 

27
68

89
 / 

07
93

9 
03

81
05

 
   

30
. 

Pl
ay

 S
tra

te
gy

 - 
 

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

  
   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Ro

y 
W

at
er

fie
ld

, A
ss

ist
an

t D
ire

ct
or

 L
ei

su
re

 a
nd

 
Cu

ltu
re

, L
ib

ra
rie

s,
 A

du
lt 

an
d 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

ro
y.

wa
te

rfi
el

d@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

 
Te

l: 
03

00
 3

00
 4

23
9 

   
31

. 
Ch

ild
 P

ov
er

ty
 S

tra
te

gy
 - 

 
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
  

   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 
G

le
n 

De
nh

am
, A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 
Se

rv
ice

s 
0-

19
 

gl
en

.d
en

ha
m

@
ce

nt
ra

lb
ed

fo
rd

sh
ire

.g
ov

.u
k 

 
Te

l: 
03

00
 3

00
 6

12
5 

   

Agenda Item 12
Page 75



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

32
. 

Tr
an

sit
io

ns
 P

ol
icy

 - 
 

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
 

   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

33
. 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 P
ol

icy
 - 

 
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

 
   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

34
. 

Ch
ild

 in
 N

ee
d 

Po
lic

y 
-  

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
 

   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

No
ne

. 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

35
. 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

 P
ol

icy
 - 

 
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
po

lic
y.

  
   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

Agenda Item 12
Page 76



 Re
f 

No
. 

Is
su

e 
fo
r K

ey
 D
ec
is
io
n 
by

 
th
e 
Ex

ec
ut
iv
e 
 

(a
nd

 in
te
nd

ed
 d
ec

is
io
n)
 

In
di
ca

tiv
e 

M
ee

tin
g 
Da

te
 

Co
ns

ul
te
es

 a
nd

 D
at
e 
/ M

et
ho

d 
Do

cu
m
en

ts
 w
hi
ch

 m
ay
 b
e 

co
ns

id
er
ed

 
Co

nt
ac

t M
em

be
rs
 a
nd

 O
ffi
ce

r (
M
et
ho

d 
of
 

Co
m
m
en

t a
nd

 C
lo
si
ng

 D
at
e)
 

36
. 

Fo
st

er
in

g 
Po

lic
y 

-  
To

 a
gr

ee
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

 
   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

37
. 

Ad
op

tio
n 

Po
lic

y 
-  

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y.
  

   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 4
48

4 
   

38
. 

Pr
iva

te
 F

os
te

rin
g 

Po
lic

y 
-  

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y.
  

   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
M

ar
tin

 P
ra

tt,
 A

ss
ist

an
t D

ire
ct

or
 S

pe
cia

lis
t 

Se
rv

ice
s 

m
ar

tin
.p

ra
tt@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

Te
l: 

 0
30

0 
30

0 
44

84
 

 
39

. 
Ch

ild
re

n 
M

iss
in

g 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

Po
lic

y 
-  

To
 a

gr
ee

 th
e 

po
lic

y 
 

   

9 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0 
 

   

Re
po

rt 
 

Cl
lr 

M
rs

 A
ni

ta
 M

 L
ew

is 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 b
y 

10
/0

2/
10

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
 O

ffi
ce

r: 
Pa

tri
ck

 S
he

vli
n,

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
ch

oo
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pa

tri
ck

.s
he

vli
n@

ce
nt

ra
lb

ed
fo

rd
sh

ire
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

Te
l: 

03
00

 3
00

 6
82

1 
 

  Po
st
al
 a
dd

re
ss
 fo

r C
on

ta
ct
 O
ffi
ce

rs
:  

Ce
nt
ra
l B

ed
fo
rd
sh

ire
 C
ou

nc
il,
 P
rio

ry
 H
ou

se
, M

on
ks
 W

al
k,
 C
hi
ck
sa
nd

s,
 S
he

ffo
rd
  S

G
17
 5
TQ

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 77



 

Central Bedfordshire Council  
Forward Plan of Decisions on Key Issues 

 
The following table sets out the dates on which the Central Bedfordshire Council Forward Plan will 
be published in 2009/10: 
 

 Date of Publication Period of Plan 
 

 08.05.09 1 June 2009 – 31 May 2010 
 

 15.06.09 1 July 2009 – 30 June 2010 
 

 15.07.09 1  August 2009 – 31 July 2010  
 

 13.08.09 1 September 2009 – 31 August 2010 
 

 10.09.09 1 October 2009 – 30 September 2010 
 

 08.10.09 1 November  2009 –  31 October 2010 
 

 05.11.09 1 December 2009 – 30 November 2010 
 

 03.12.09 
 

1 January – 31 December 2010 
 

 07.01.10 1 February 2010 – 31 January 2011 
 

 04.02.10 1 March 2010 – 28 February 2011 
 

 04.03.10 1 April 2010 – 31 March 2011 
 

 31.03.10 1 May 2010 – 30 April 2011 
  

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 78



 
 
Meeting: Children, Families and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 11 August 2009 

Subject: Draft Work Programme 2009-2010 
 

Report of: Jon Partridge, Overview & Scrutiny Officer 

Summary: The report provides Members with a draft work programme for approval 
following initial discussion at the last meeting. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: Jon Partridge 

Public/Exempt: Public 

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: n/a 

Key Decision  n/a 

Reason for urgency/ 
Exemption from call-
in 
(if appropriate) 

n/a 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

1. That the Children, Families and Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
considers and approves the draft work programme attached, subject to any 
further amendments it may wish to make. 
 

2. That the Children, Families and Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
considers whether it wishes to establish any Task Forces to assist it in 
reviewing specific items on the draft work programme. 
 

Reason for 
Recommendation: 
 
 

So that Members of the Children, Families and Learning Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee can establish its work programme for the 
municipal year 2009 - 2010. 
 

 
Work Programme 
 
1. 
 

As Members will be aware, the Committee received a directorate presentation 
at its last meeting, complemented by a long list of suggested items for 
inclusion in a draft Committee work programme for 2009 - 2010. 
 

2. 
 

At this meeting, and with the support of the Director, Members highlighted 
from this long list a number of priority items for inclusion in a Committee work 
programme. 
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 79



3. The current draft work programme contains those priority areas agreed for 
inclusion by the Committee at their last meeting. There are presently four 
meetings of the Committee scheduled where items have not yet been 
allocated, these being the 5 January 2010, 2 February 2010, 27 April 2010 
and 25 May 2010. In order to assist the Committee, with the support of the 
Director, in highlighting further items for inclusion in the agenda the initial long 
list of items has once more been attached at Appendix B. Members of the 
Committee are requested to consider, with the support of the Director, which 
of these further items they wish to add to their work programme for the 
remainder of the municipal year.   
 

4. 
 

The Committee is therefore requested to consider the draft programme 
attached, make further amendments if considered necessary and approve a 
final version so that officers can plan accordingly (this will not preclude further 
items being added during the course of the year if Members so wish and 
capacity exists). 
 

Task Forces 
 
5. 
 

In addition to approving a final version of the work programme, Members will 
also need to consider how each item will be reviewed i.e. by the Committee 
itself (over one or a number of Committee meetings) or by establishing a 
Member Task Force to review an item in greater depth and report back its 
findings. 
 

Conclusion 
 
6. Members are requested to consider and agree the attached draft work 

programme, subject to any further amendments they may wish to make and 
highlight those items within it where they wish to establish a Task Force to 
assist the Committee in its work. 
 

 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 
The work programme of the Children, Families and Learning Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee should contribute to all 5 Council priorities, and will specifically support the 
priority directly related to the work of the Children, Families and Learning Directorate, 
being educating, protecting and providing opportunities for children and young people. 
 
The work programme of the Children, Families and Learning Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee should also contribute to each of the priorities agreed under the Children 
and Young People’s Plan and the five key ‘Every Child Matters’ outcomes for all 
children and young people; ‘be healthy, stay safe, enjoy and achieve, make a positive 
contribution and achieve economic well-being’. 
 
 
Financial: 
n/a 
 
Legal: 

Agenda Item 13
Page 80



n/a 
 
Risk Management: 

n/a 
 
Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

n/a 
 
Equalities/Human Rights: 

n/a 
 
Community Development/Safety: 

n/a 
 
Sustainability: 

n/a 
 
 
Appendices: 

 
Appendix A - Draft Work Programme for Children Families & Learning Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 2009 – 2010 
 
Appendix B - Further Potential Work Programme Items for Children Families & 
Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee 2009 - 2010 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
 

 
D
ra
ft
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 F
am

ili
es
 &
 L
ea
rn
in
g
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
20
09
 

- 
20
10
 

 R
ef
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

Is
su
e 
to
 b
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
 

In
d
ic
at
iv
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

D
at
e 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

1.
 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P
eo

pl
e'
s 

P
la
n 

T
he
 C
Y
P
P
 s
et
s 
th
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
vi
si
on

 a
nd

 
co
m
m
is
si
on

in
g 
fr
am

ew
or
k 
w
ith
in
 w
hi
ch
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
w
ill
, 

to
ge
th
er
 o
r 
in
di
vi
du

al
ly
, e

ns
ur
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

w
hi
ch
 im

pr
ov
e 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un
g 

pe
op
le
 a
nd

 fa
m
ili
es
 in
 th
e 
ar
ea
.  
M
em

be
rs
 w
ill
 

re
ce
iv
e 
a 
re
po

rt
 o
n 
th
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
th
e 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 

w
ith
in
 th

e 
pl
an
 fo

r 
th
ei
r 
co
m
m
en
ts
. 

11
 A
ug
us
t 2
00

9 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 n
ee
d 
to
 d
ec
id
e 

w
he

th
er
 th

ey
 r
ec
ei
ve
 th
e 

w
ho

le
 P
la
n 
at
 o
ne

 m
ee
tin
g 

or
 o
ve
r 
se
ve
ra
l m

ee
tin
gs
. 

2.
 

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 o
f 

S
pe

ci
al
 N
ee
ds
 

P
ro
vi
si
on

 

A
 r
ep

or
t r
eq
ue

st
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee
 a
t i
ts
 fi
rs
t 

m
ee
tin
g 
ou

tli
ni
ng
 S
E
N
 p
ro
vi
si
on

 in
 C
en

tr
al
 

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
. 

11
 A
ug
us
t 2
00

9 
 

3.
 

N
ex
t S

te
ps
 in
 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

in
g 

T
ea
ch
in
g 
&
 

Le
ar
ni
ng
 

A
 p
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
re
qu
es
te
d 
by
 th
e 
C
om

m
itt
ee

 a
t i
ts
 

fir
st
 m
ee
tin
g 
pr
ov
id
in
g 
an

 u
pd

at
e 
on

 p
ro
gr
es
s 

re
ga
rd
in
g 
B
S
F
 a
nd
 o
ut
lin
in
g 
th
e 
re
su
lts
 o
f r
ec
en

t 
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n 
w
ith
 s
ch
oo
ls
 r
eg
ar
di
ng
 C
B
C
’s
 

ed
uc
at
io
na
l v
is
io
n 
an

d 
gu
id
in
g 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
. 

11
 A
ug
us
t 2
00

9 
 

4.
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

re
po

rt
 Q
1 

T
he
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
t  

11
 A
ug
us
t 2
00

9 
 

5.
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

up
da
te
 

 
8 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09

 
In
 fu
tu
re
 S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

up
da
te
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
pr
es
en
te
d 

qu
ar
te
rly
 to

ge
th
er
 w
ith
 th

e 
pe

rf
or
m
an

ce
 r
ep
or
ts
 

6.
 

C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
in
fo
rm

s 
ho
w
 th

e 
au

th
or
ity
 w
ill
 u
nd

er
ta
ke
 

S
tr
at
eg
ic
 C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 
an

d 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 

fr
am

ew
or
k 
fo
r 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
C
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

6 
O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 

T
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 m
ay
 w
is
h 
to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
a 
T
as
k 
F
or
ce
 to

 
re
vi
ew

 th
is
 p
ol
ic
y 

Agenda Item 13
Page 83



R
ef
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

Is
su
e 
to
 b
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
 

In
d
ic
at
iv
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

D
at
e 

C
o
m
m
en
t 

7.
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

re
po

rt
 Q
2 

T
he
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
t  

3 
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09

 
 

8.
 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

up
da
te
 

 
3 
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09

 
 

9.
 

C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 

W
or
kf
or
ce
 

D
ev
el
op

m
en
t 

S
tr
at
eg
y 

T
hi
s 
st
ra
te
gy
 s
et
s 
ou
t h
ow

 w
e 
ar
e 
go
in
g 
to
 d
ev
el
op

 
th
e 
ch
ild
re
n'
s 
w
or
kf
or
ce
 lo
ca
lly
 to

 c
re
at
e 
a 
w
or
ld
-

cl
as
s 
w
or
kf
or
ce
 

3 
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09

 
T
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 m
ay
 w
is
h 
to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
a 
T
as
k 
F
or
ce
 to

 
re
vi
ew

 th
is
 p
ol
ic
y 

10
. 

C
ul
tu
ra
l S

tr
at
eg
y 

T
he
 C
ul
tu
ra
l S

tr
at
eg
y 
en

ca
ps
ul
at
es
 th

e 
vi
si
on

 fo
r 

cu
ltu
ra
l e
nt
itl
em

en
t f
or
 a
ll 
ci
tiz
en

s 
in
 C
en

tr
al
 

B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
 m
ov
in
g 
to
 a
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 c
om

m
is
si
on

in
g 

an
d 
en

tit
le
m
en

t m
od
el
 a
nd

 r
ec
og
ni
se
s 
th
e 
cr
os
s 

cu
tti
ng
 n
at
ur
e 
of
 c
ul
tu
ra
l e
nt
itl
em

en
t. 

1 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
09

 
T
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 m
ay
 w
is
h 
to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
a 
T
as
k 
F
or
ce
 to

 
re
vi
ew

 th
is
 p
ol
ic
y 

11
. 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

re
po

rt
 Q
3 

T
he
 q
ua

rt
er
ly
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
t  

2 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

0 
 

12
. 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

up
da
te
 

 
2 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

0 
 

13
. 

H
om

e 
to
 S
ch
oo
l 

T
ra
ns
po

rt
 P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 h
ow

 th
e 
au

th
or
ity
 w
ill
 r
es
po

nd
 to
 

th
e 
H
om

e 
to
 S
ch
oo
l T
ra
ns
po
rt
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 w
ith
in
 

th
e 
E
du

ca
tio
n 
A
ct
 1
99
6 
an
d 
th
e 
E
du

ca
tio
na
l 

In
sp
ec
tio
ns
 A
ct
 2
00
6 

30
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

T
he
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 m
ay
 w
is
h 
to
 

es
ta
bl
is
h 
a 
T
as
k 
F
or
ce
 to

 
re
vi
ew

 th
is
 p
ol
ic
y 

  

Agenda Item 13
Page 84



A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
 

 
F
u
rt
h
er
 P
o
te
n
ti
al
 W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e 
It
em

s 
fo
r 
C
h
ild
re
n
 F
am

ili
es
 &
 L
ea
rn
in
g
 O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
C
o
m
m
it
te
e 
20
09
 -
 2
01
0 

 R
ef
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

Is
su
e 
to
 b
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
 

In
d
ic
at
iv
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

D
at
e 

1.
 

JS
N
A
 

U
pd

at
e 
on
 th
e 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
f t
he

 J
S
N
A
 

8 
S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
09

 
2.
 

Lo
rd
 L
am

in
g 

A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 

in
cl
ud

in
g 
no
n-

re
gu
la
te
d 

sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 

po
lic
ie
s 

T
hi
s 
re
po

rt
 s
et
s 
ou
t t
he
 h
ow

 C
en

tr
al
 B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
 is
 r
es
po
nd

in
g 
to
 th
e 

re
co
m
m
en
da
tio
ns
 s
et
 o
ut
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
Lo
rd
 L
am

in
g 
re
po

rt
 in
cl
ud

in
g 
th
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

fo
r 
sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 w
ith
in
 n
on

-r
eg
ul
at
ed

 fu
nc
tio
ns
.  
M
em

be
rs
 w
ill
 b
e 
as
ke
d 
fo
r 

co
m
m
en
ts
. 

6 
O
ct
ob
er
 2
00
9 

3.
 

E
lig
ib
ili
ty
 fo

r 
pa

ym
en

ts
 p
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 e
lig
ib
ili
ty
 c
rit
er
ia
 fo

r 
pa
ym

en
ts
 to
 fo
st
er
 c
ar
er
s,
 R
O
, S

G
O
 a
nd
 A
A
 

al
lo
w
an

ce
s,
 S
17
 a
nd

 S
23

 p
ay
m
en

ts
, p
ay
m
en

ts
 to

 C
ar
e 
Le
av
er
s 
an

d 
D
ire
ct
 

P
ay
m
en

ts
. 

3 
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09

 

4.
 

R
ai
si
ng
 

A
ch
ie
ve
m
en
t 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
ou

tli
ne

s 
ho
w
 r
es
ou

rc
es
 w
ith
in
 th

e 
co
un

ci
l w

ill
 b
e 
ta
rg
et
ed
 to

 im
pr
ov
e 

pr
ov
is
io
n 
in
 s
ch
oo

ls
 a
nd
 e
ar
ly
 y
ea

rs
 s
et
tin
gs
 a
nd

 r
ai
se
 a
ch
ie
ve
m
en
t e
sp
ec
ia
lly
 th

at
 

of
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe

op
le
 in
 v
ul
ne

ra
bl
e 
ci
rc
um

st
an
ce
s 

3 
N
ov
em

be
r 
20
09

 

5.
 

W
or
k 
of
 th
e 

C
hi
ld
re
n'
s 
T
ru
st
 

P
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
fo
r 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
th
en
 o
nt
o 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e 
fo
r 
co
m
m
en
ts
 

1 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
09

 

6.
 

Lo
rd
 L
am

in
g 

A
ct
io
n 
pl
an

 
in
cl
ud

in
g 
no
n-

re
gu
la
te
d 

sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
 

po
lic
y 

T
hi
s 
pl
an

 s
et
s 
ou

t t
he
 r
es
po
ns
e 
to
 th
e 
Lo
rd
 L
am

in
g 
A
ct
io
n 
P
la
n 
an
d 
al
so
 c
ov
er
s 
th
e 

du
tie
s 
of
 th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 s
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
co
ve
rin
g 
is
su
es
 s
uc
h 
as
 

ve
tti
ng
 a
nd

 b
ar
rin
g,
 a
lle
ga
tio
ns
 a
ga
in
st
 s
ta
ff 
an

d 
th
os
e 
co
m
in
g 
in
to
 to
 c
on
ta
ct
 o
r 

w
or
ki
ng

 w
ith
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
. 

1 
D
ec
em

be
r 
20
09

 

7.
 

P
la
y 
S
tr
at
eg
y 

T
o 
im
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
liv
es
 o
f c
hi
ld
re
n 
an

d 
yo
un

g 
pe
op

le
 b
y 
de

liv
er
in
g 
hi
gh
 q
ua

lit
y 
an

d 
in
no

va
tiv
e 
pl
ay
 o
pp

or
tu
ni
tie
s 
an

d 
ex
pe

rie
nc
es
 a
cr
os
s 
C
en
tr
al
 B
ed
fo
rd
sh
ire
 

5 
Ja
nu
ar
y 
20

10
 

8.
 

B
U
D
G
E
T
 

B
U
D
G
E
T
 

2 
F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

10
 

Agenda Item 13
Page 85



R
ef
 

R
ep
o
rt
 T
it
le
 

Is
su
e 
to
 b
e 
co
n
si
d
er
ed
 

In
d
ic
at
iv
e 
O
ve
rv
ie
w
 &
 

S
cr
u
ti
n
y 
M
ee
ti
n
g
 

D
at
e 

9.
 

F
os
te
rin
g 
P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
st
at
ut
or
y 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 w
ha

t a
s 
an

 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
w
e 
in
te
nd

 to
 d
o 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
as
 fa
r 

as
 p
os
si
bl
e 
th
at
 w
e 
m
at
ch
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ho

 b
ec
om

e 
lo
ok
ed
 a
fte

r 
to
 a
n 
in
-h
ou

se
 fo

st
er
 

ca
re
r.
 

2 
F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

10
 

10
. 

A
do

pt
io
n 
P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
st
at
ut
or
y 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 w
ha

t a
s 
an

 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
w
e 
in
te
nd

 to
 d
o 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
as
 fa
r 

as
 p
os
si
bl
e 
th
at
 w
e 
m
at
ch
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
to
 s
ui
ta
bl
e 
pr
os
pe

ct
iv
e 
ad
op
te
rs
. 

2 
F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

10
 

11
. 

P
riv
at
e 
F
os
te
rin
g 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
st
at
ut
or
y 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 h
ow

 w
e 
w
ill
 s
af
eg
ua

rd
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
w
ho

 a
re
 in
 P
riv
at
e 

F
os
te
rin
g 
P
la
ce
m
en
ts
. 

2 
F
eb

ru
ar
y 
20

10
 

12
. 

S
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 
st
at
ut
or
y 
du

tie
s 
of
 th
e 
au

th
or
ity
 a
nd

 h
ow

 w
e 
w
ill
 w
or
k 
w
ith
 

pa
rt
ne

r 
ag
en

ci
es
 lo
ca
lly
 to

 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
ar
e 
sa
fe
.  
(C
om

es
 u
nd
er
 L
S
C
B
) 

2 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

0 

13
. 

C
hi
ld
 in
 N
ee
d 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 
el
ig
ib
ili
ty
 c
rit
er
ia
 fo

r 
se
rv
ic
es
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
le
ve
ls
 o
f n

ee
d 
of
 

ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
fa
m
ili
es
.  
It 
re
sp
on
ds
 to
 th
e 
st
at
ut
or
y 
du

tie
s 
to
 s
up
po

rt
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
in
 

ne
ed
. 

2 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

0 

14
. 

Lo
ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
an
d 

Y
ou

ng
 P
eo

pl
e 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
he
 L
oo

ke
d 
af
te
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
yo
un

g 
pe
op
le
 p
ol
ic
y 
re
sp
on

ds
 to
 th
e 
st
at
ut
or
y 
du

tie
s 

fo
r 
th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho

rit
y 
in
 li
ne

 w
ith
 th

e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
A
ct
 1
98

9 
th
e 
C
hi
ld
re
n 
an

d 
Y
ou
ng
 

P
er
so
ns
 A
ct
 2
00
8 
an
d 
th
e 
Le

av
in
g 
C
ar
e 
A
ct
 2
00

0.
 

2 
M
ar
ch
 2
01

0 

15
. 

P
os
t 1
6 
H
om

e 
to
 

S
ch
oo

l T
ra
ns
po
rt
 

P
ol
ic
y 

T
he
 L
oc
al
 A
ut
ho
rit
y 
ha

s 
a 
du
ty
 to

 p
re
pa

re
 a
nd
 p
ub
lis
h 
an
 a
nn

ua
l T
ra
ns
po
rt
 P
ol
ic
y 

S
ta
te
m
en

t s
pe

ci
fy
in
g 
th
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 tr
an

sp
or
t o
r 
ot
he
rw
is
e 

th
at
 th
e 
A
ut
ho

rit
y 
co
ns
id
er
s 
it 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
to
 m
ak
e 
fo
r 
fa
ci
lit
at
in
g 
th
e 
at
te
nd

an
ce
 o
f 

pe
rs
on

s 
of
 s
ix
th
 fo

rm
 a
ge
 r
ec
ei
vi
ng
 e
du

ca
tio
n 
or
 tr
ai
ni
ng

 a
t s
ch
oo
ls
, c
ol
le
ge
s 
or
 a
ny
 

es
ta
bl
is
hm

en
t f
un
de

d 
by
 th

e 
Le
ar
ni
ng
 a
nd

 S
ki
lls
 C
ou

nc
il.
 

30
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

16
. 

T
ra
ns
iti
on

 P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 h
ow

 th
e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 
w
ill
 w
or
k 
w
ith
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
tr
an

sf
er
rin
g 
fr
om

 
C
hi
ld
re
n’
s 
S
pe
ci
al
is
t S

er
vi
ce
s 
ei
th
er
 to

 s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
si
on

 w
ith
in
 A
du

lt 
S
oc
ia
l C

ar
e 
or
 

to
 in
de
pe
nd
en

t a
du
lt 
lif
e 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 th
ey
 a
re
 g
iv
en

 th
e 
su
pp
or
t n
ec
es
sa
ry
 to

 a
s 

th
ey
 m

ov
e 
in
to
 a
du

lth
oo
d.
 

30
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
0 

17
. 

In
cl
us
io
n 
P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
se
ts
 o
ut
 th
e 
in
te
nt
io
ns
 o
f t
he

 lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 e
nh
an

ce
 th
e 
in
cl
us
io
n 
of
 a
ll 

vu
ln
er
ab

le
 g
ro
up

s 
of
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
ro
ug
h 
pa

rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
an
d 
se
rv
ic
e 
de

si
gn
 a
nd
 

de
liv
er
y 
an

d 
is
 u
nd

er
pi
nn

ed
 b
y 
th
e 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 o
f C

hi
ld
re
n’
s 
R
ig
ht
s.
 

27
t A
pr
il 
20
10

 

18
. 

C
hi
ld
re
n 
M
is
si
ng
 

E
du

ca
tio
n 
P
ol
ic
y 

T
hi
s 
po

lic
y 
is
 d
es
ig
ne

d 
to
 h
el
p 
th
e 
lo
ca
l a
ut
ho
rit
y 
m
ee

t i
ts
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
ut
ie
s 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 

th
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n 
of
 e
du

ca
tio
n 
an
d 
to
 s
af
eg
ua

rd
in
g 
an

d 
pr
om

ot
in
g 
th
e 
w
el
fa
re
 o
f 

ch
ild
re
n.
 

27
 A
pr
il 
20

10
 

 

Agenda Item 13
Page 86



Children Families and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
11 August 2009 
 
Acronyms used in reports 
 
Please note, that whilst the acronyms listed here are used in the reports, the 
majority of them have been spelt out within the body of the report 
 

Acronym Meaning 

BEST Bedfordshire East Schools Trust  

BSF Building Schools for the Future 

CAF Common Assessment Framework 

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services 

DCSF Department for Children Schools and Families 

ESP Safeguarding Programme 

FE Forms of Entry 

ICT Information and Communication Technology 

ITCD Invitation to Competitive Dialogue  

ITSFB Invitation to submit final bids  

LAA Local Area Agreement 

LSCB Local Safeguarding Children Board 

LTB Learning Transformation Board 

MLD Moderate learning difficulties 

MMR Measles mumps and rubella 

NEET Not in education employment or training 

NI National Indicators 

NOR Number on Roll 

OJEU Official Journal of European Union 

ONS Office of National Statistics 

PFS Partnerships for Schools 

PLASC Pupil Level Annual School Corus  

PMLD Profound and multiple learning difficulties 

RIEP Regional Improvement and Efficiency partnership  

SEN Special Educational Needs 

SLD Severe learning difficulties 
 

Agenda Item 14
Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	9 Priorities for the Children and Young People's Plan for Central Bedfordshire
	08 Children and Young People Plan 110809 - Appendix A
	08 Children and Young People Plan 110809 - Appendix B
	08 Children and Young People Plan 110809 - Appendix C
	08 Children and Young People Plan 110809 - Appendix D

	10 Consultation on the Future of Special Schools in the East of Central Bedfordshire
	11 Next Steps on Transforming Teaching and Learning in Central Bedfordshire
	11 Next Steps Transforming Teaching and Learning in Central Bedfordshire 110809 - Appendix A
	11 Next Steps Transforming Teaching and Learning in Central Bedfordshire 110809 - Appendix B

	12 Executive Forward Plan
	13 Draft Work Programme 2009-2010
	12 CFL OSC Work Programme report - Appendix A
	12 CFL OSC Work Programme report - Appendix B

	14 Acronyms used in Reports

